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CORPORATE PROFILE

TO BE THE
LEADING,
PREMIER
INTEGRATED
MARINA
DEVELOPER

Headquartered in Singapore, SUTL Enterprise Limited (“SUTL Enterprise” or
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a leading developer, operator and
consultant of integrated marinas. It is the only marina business to be listed on the
SGX.
The Group develops infrastructure for integrated marinas and also provides
consultancy services for such projects. It operates its own marinas under its
proprietary ONE°15 brand, as well as those of third parties under management
contracts. In addition, the Group has a complementary yacht chartering business
with a fleet of more than 40 luxury yachts, under its fully-owned subsidiary,
ONE°15 Luxury Yachting.
Besides the ONE°15 Marina Club Sentosa Cove in Singapore which it owns and
operates, SUTL Enterprise has expanded its network overseas and currently runs
the ONE°15 Marina Brooklyn in New York, USA, under a management contract.
Its current pipeline includes consultancy and management contracts for two
soon-to-be completed marinas in Zhuhai, China and in Jakarta, Indonesia. It also
has a joint venture project in Puteri Harbour in Iskandar Malaysia that comprises
a private marina, a public marina and a superyacht marina.
SUTL Enterprise’s vision is to be a leading premier integrated marina developer.
SUTL Group of Companies, which is a privately held lifestyle consumer goods
and services conglomerate, holds a 54.81% stake in SUTL Enterprise.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Unlike Europe and the
US where the boating
lifestyle is already firmly
entrenched, these coastal
destinations in Asia are
waiting to be developed
and the possibilities are
endless.

Dear Shareholders,
The year ended 31 December 2016 was
our first full year as SUTL Enterprise and it
was a very eventful one for the Group.
We started the year by disposing of the
last of our legacy IT peripherals distribution
business in January 2016. Unencumbered
by this loss making business, we were able
to fully focus all our energies on our vision
to be Asia’s leading, premier integrated
marina developer.
Our CEO, Mr Arthur Tay, has a dream to
adorn a string of pearls along the beautiful
coastlines of Asia where the boating
community can sail along and stop to
explore this amazing region. Each pearl
represents an efficiently operated worldclass ONE°15 branded integrated marina
with a myriad of lifestyle and retail choices.
Each of them a destination within
a destination.
Once this network is in place, we believe
that it will attract a new segment of farflung visitors to the region – a community
of high net worth individuals who own super
yachts but have not been able to explore
Asia’s coastline in the past because of a
lack of available and viable berthing space.
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Through our interactions with many boating
enthusiasts from Europe and the US, we
have learnt that they are in fact very keen
to sail here but are hampered by the lack of
infrastructure.
We envisage that a strong network of
marinas will also make it possible for those
who love the waterfront and boating lifestyle
to visit hard-to-reach coastal destinations
and islands on chartered yachts. This in
turn will benefit the yacht leasing business
of ONE°15 Luxury Yachting.
Both of these are new high value tourism
segments which we wish to contribute to
Asia’s tourism industry.
The opportunities are aplenty because
many countries in Asia are not landlocked.
In fact, of all the world’s regions, we
may have the highest network of islands
and coastal areas here. Indonesia alone
has more than 17,500 islands and the
Philippines has more than 7,000 islands.
Unlike Europe and the US where the boating
lifestyle is already firmly entrenched, these
coastal destinations in Asia are waiting
to be developed and the possibilities are
endless.

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
While we are keen to develop marina
infrastructure in emerging markets, these
projects have longer gestation periods
because some of these marinas have to be
redeveloped while others have to be built
from the ground up.
To counterbalance the longer wait from
greenfield marinas, we have been actively
keeping an eye out for potential assets in
more mature markets around the world that
we may acquire. Our plan is to introduce
Asian hospitality, which is warm and
attentive, and breathe new life and vibrancy
into these old marinas. We have seen some
potential assets for sale but we will do our
due diligence and only make the investment
if it is the right fit and reasonably priced.
In FY2016, we had added three new pearls
to our necklace. The first was through an
agreement with UEM Sunrise Berhad to
incorporate a joint venture company to
develop a public marina, a private marina
and a superyacht marina Puteri Harbour of
Iskandar Puteri in Iskandar Malaysia, Johor.
All will be branded ONE°15. We are still
working towards fulfilling all the conditions
precedent for this Joint Venture.

The team is busy
looking for more
pearls to add to our
necklace in FY2017
and we hope to have
good news to share
very soon.

The second and third, which were
announced at the same time in September
2016 were contracts for the management
of a marina in Zhuhai, China and a marina
in Jakarta, Indonesia. All three are in
different stages of development but we
expect all to become operational between
2018 and 2019.
These new marinas together with ONE°15
Marina Club, Sentosa Singapore and
ONE°15 Brooklyn New York, USA, which we
are also managing, brings the total number
of marinas we have to five.
The team is busy looking for more pearls
to add to our necklace in FY2017 and we
hope to have good news to share very soon.
In the meantime, we are pleased to
share the fruits of a good year with our
shareholders. The Board has proposed a
final dividend of 2.0 Singapore cents per
share to be approved by shareholders at the
upcoming AGM in April 2017.
In closing, I would like to thank our
management team for their dedication to
the Group’s vision and their determination
to make it happen. I also want to thank
our shareholders for your patience as we
build up our new marina business and
your faith in our ability to add value to your
investment.
Lew Syn Pau
Non-Executive Chairman

* Previously known as ONE°15 Marina Pantai Mutiara.

Annual Report 2016

SUTL Enterprise Limited

03

CEO’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,
Even as we wrap up the financial year
ended 31 December 2016 (“FY2016”)
with the release of this annual report, I am
excited at what lies ahead for the Group.

comprises three marinas that will bear the
ONE°15 brand and will include a 148-berth
public marina, a 278-berth private marina
and a superyacht marina for 14 vessels.

Our Chairman has clearly laid out the
prospects and plans that we have made
for our Group. However the nature of
the business is such that it will take us
some time to scale up our business and
operations hence we ask shareholders to be
patient as we do this slowly but surely.

We are still working towards fulfilling all the
conditions precedent for this Joint Venture.
The construction of the marinas at Puteri
Harbour is expected to commence in the
second half of 2017 and to complete by
the third quarter of 2019. The JV Company,
which SUTL Enterprise owns a 60% stake
in, will also be involved in developing and
operating the proprietary yacht club, a
sports centre and other complementary
businesses.

Corporate Updates
In June 2015, we had announced our
plans to transform our business and you
could say we got right down to it because
all our efforts in FY2016 starting from the
divestment of our legacy IT peripherals
business in January 2016, were all
directed at growing our new marina-related
business.
In the following month of February 2016,
we signed a conditional agreement with
UEM Sunrise Berhad to jointly incorporate,
finance and operate a joint venture
company (“JV Company”) for the purpose
of developing the existing marina in Puteri
Harbour, Iskandar Malaysia. The project

In September 2016, we expanded to
more destinations with the signing of
management and consultancy contracts in
Jakarta, Indonesia and Zhuhai, China. We
believe the berths at both marinas will be
highly sought after because of their ideal
locations.
The marina in China is on Guishan Island
and in close proximity to Hong Kong, Macau,
Guangzhou, Shenzhen and Zhuhai. The
project comprises a 116-berth marina with
clubhouse, a 176-room hotel with spa and
gymnasium and a 153-room boutique hotel.
* Previously known as ONE°15 Marina Pantai Mutiara.
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CEO’S MESSAGE
Construction has started and is expected to
complete in the second half of 2018.
The 320-berth marina located in Jakarta,
Indonesia facing the Java Sea, will have
a clubhouse with hotel accommodation,
lifestyle retail, spas and fitness centre.
Construction has started and will finish by
the second half of 2018.

The Group concluded
FY2016 on a high
note with a more than
two-fold increase in
net attributable profit
to owners to S$3.9
million. This was on
the back of revenue
which increased 2%
to S$28.2 million.

To further strengthen our brand positioning,
we appointed Singapore’s first Olympic
gold medallist, Joseph Schooling, as the
ambassador for the ONE˚15 brand. His
perseverance to become the world’s fastest
swimmer is in line with our own vision to
become the world’s best marina brand and
we felt it was the perfect fit.
Performance Review
The Group concluded FY2016 on a high
note with a more than two-fold increase in
net attributable profit to owners to S$3.9
million. This was on the back of revenue
which increased 2% to S$28.2 million.
We attribute the strong performance as
compared to the preceding 12 months in
2015 (“FY2015”) when net attributable
profit to owners was S$1.6 million and
revenue was S$27.7 million, mainly to the
transformation of the Group’s business
and our focus on operational efficiency and
careful cost management.
Outlook
As at 31 December 2016, SUTL
Enterprise’s financial position remained
strong with zero borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents of S$41.3 million. This
puts us in a good position to strengthen our
business through potential marina-related
investments should suitable opportunities
come along.

consultancy to marinas that are being
developed, with the end goal of putting our
ONE°15 brand on them and then operating
the marinas under management contracts
upon completion. In the hope of facilitating
more rapid expansion, we are at the same
time looking to acquire established marinas
that we can transform and rebrand.
As they say, the world is our oyster and
we are looking for pearls but while it is our
desire to grow quickly, we will exercise
prudence and due diligence before making
any investments.
Appreciation
Our performance last year was a
strong affirmation of the change in
strategic direction and we want to thank
shareholders who had faith in us. As the
first such business to be listed on SGX, we
are grateful for the support you have shown
the Group and our Board is very pleased to
propose our very first dividend payout as
SUTL Enterprise. At 2.0 Singapore cents
per share, this represents 44.9% of our net
attributable profit in FY2016.
In closing, I want to thank the Board of
Directors for your wise guidance during
the year and our suppliers and business
partners for the strong relationship we
share. Most of all, I want to thank all our
staff at SUTL Enterprise for your hard work
in making FY2016 such a good year for the
Group.
Arthur Tay
Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer

We have a two-prong strategy to grow our
network of ONE°15 branded marinas. We
are looking for opportunities to provide
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

TOTAL INCOME FROM
CONTINUING OPERATION

PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM
CONTINUING OPERATION

EBITDA* FROM CONTINUING
OPERATION

($’000)

($’000)

($’000)

6,305

6,076

4,502

4,213

4,454

2,515

4,141

28,196

27,688

27,971

1,921

2,041

25,923

25,348

2,501**
2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2016

2015

2014

2013
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Singapore Yacht Show 2016 at ONE°15 Marina Club, Sentosa Cove

Income Statement
In FY2016, SUTL achieved total income of
$28.2 million comprising sales of goods
and services of $19.7 million, membership
related fees and management fees of $6.9
million and other income of $1.6 million.
The 2% increase over FY2015 total income
of $27.7 million was mainly driven by
higher food and beverage sales and more
berthing income.
Total expenses in FY2016 amounted to
$23.7 million, an increase of 1% from
$23.5 million in FY2015. The increase
was due mainly to increase in salaries and
related expense, professional fees and
business development expenses that were
partially offset by lower operation expenses
during the year.
FY2016 EBITDA from continuing operations
came in at $6.3 million as compared to
$6.1 million in the preceding year. The
Group’s profit after tax attributable to
owners of the Company in FY2016 was
$3.9 million as compared to $1.6 million
in FY2015 which included a loss of $2.0
million from discontinued operations.

Supercar Parade during the annual Singapore Yacht Show

Earnings per share for FY2016 was 4.46
cents (based on 86.5 million weighted
average number of shares in FY2016)
compared with 5.54 cents for FY2015
(based on 64.7 million weighted average
number of shares in FY2015).
Financial Position
The Group’s net assets attributable
to owners of the Company as at 31
December 2016 totalled $54.2 million, an
increase of 7.8% over $50.3 million as
at 31 December 2015. Cash and cash
equivalents totalled $41.3 million at the end
of FY2016 compared with $34.5 million a
year ago, an increase of $6.8 million. The
year-on-year increase in cash and cash
equivalents was due mainly to profits in
FY2016 and proceeds from the disposal of
the ATPL Group.
The Group had no debts on it balance
sheets. Net asset value per share at the end
of FY2016 was 62.71 cents, an increase
of 7.9% over 58.12 cents at the end of
FY2015.

In FY2016,
SUTL achieved
total income of
$28.2 million.
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NAVIGATING TO
NEW SHORES
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Our dream is to adorn a string of pearls along the beautiful coastlines of Asia,
each pearl representing a ONE°15 branded marina, where the international boating
community can get together and to explore the region.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

LEW SYN PAU

ARTHUR TAY TENG GUAN

PETER TAY TENG HOCK

Chairman (Non-Executive) and
Independent Director

Executive Director and CEO

Non-Executive Director

Mr Tay is an Executive Director
and CEO of the Company and
is responsible for the overall
management of the Group. He was
first appointed as Non-Executive
Director in January 2010 and was
last re-elected in April 2016. He was
made the CEO of the Company on 1
May 2010.

Mr Tay was appointed as NonExecutive Director of the Company in
January 2010 and was last re-elected
in April 2014.

Mr Lew was appointed as Chairman
(Non-Executive) in February 2009 and
was last re-elected in April 2015. He
has been an Independent Director of
the company since April 2000.
He also sits on the board of several
other listed companies including
Broadway Industrial Group Ltd., Food
Empire Holdings Ltd., Golden- Agri
Resources Ltd. Golden Energy and
Resources Ltd. and Poh Tiong Choon
Logistics Ltd.
Mr Lew was previously the General
Manager of NTUC Pasir Ris Resort,
Managing Director of NTUC Comfort,
Executive Director of NTUC Fairprice
and Assistant Secretary General of the
NTUC before becoming the General
Manager and Senior Country Officer
of Banque Indosuez (subsequently
renamed Credit Agricole Indosuez).
He also held positions as director in
the bank’s wholly owned subsidiaries
involved with private equity, asset
management and stock broking.
A Singapore Government scholar,
Mr Lew began his career with the
Singapore Civil Service. He holds a
Master of Engineering from Cambridge
University, UK, and a Master of
Business Administration from Stanford
University, USA. He was Member of
Parliament from 1988 to 2001.

10

SUTL Enterprise Limited

Annual Report 2016

Mr Tay is also the Executive
Chairman and CEO of the SUTL
Group of Companies, a family-owned,
professionally-managed lifestyle
consumer goods and services
enterprise, which has businesses
globally. An active philanthropist and
grassroots leader, Mr Tay currently
serves as Patron for the West Coast
Citizens’ Consultative Committee.
He holds an MBA in Real Estate and
Finance.

Mr Tay is the shareholder and
executive director of the privately-held
SUTL Group of Companies. He has
been with the SUTL Group for more
than 20 years and is responsible
for building projects, building
management and logistics and
warehouse management.
Mr Tay was the project director for the
development of ONEo15 Marina Club
Sentosa Cove. He graduated from
Heriot-Watt University, Edinburgh, UK
with a Bachelor of Engineering.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAN KUM TAO

NG TECK SIM COLIN

Non-Executive Director

Independent Director

Mr Chan was appointed as NonExecutive Director in 19 January
2010 and was last re-elected in April
2016.

Mr Ng was first appointed as an
Independent Director of the company
in June 2011 and was last re-elected
in April 2015.

Mr Chan is also the Chief Financial
Officer of the privately-held SUTL
Group of Companies. Before SUTL
Group, he was Chief Financial Officer
of A&P Coordinator Pte Ltd, and has
held positions as Financial Controller
and Internal Auditor within the Alfa
Laval Group.

Mr Ng is the founding partner of Colin
Ng & Partners LLP. He is an advocate
and solicitor of the Supreme Court
of Singapore. He is a member of
the Disciplinary Panel of Singapore
Exchange Limited.

He is a Fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants
(UK), and a Fellow of the Institute of
Singapore Chartered Accountants.

Mr Ng graduated with a LLB (Hons)
from the National University of
Singapore in 1981. He also holds a
Master of Business Administration
(Accountancy) from Nanyang
Technological University.
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KEY EXECUTIVES

LONG JEK SUN, JACK

TAY KUAN WEE, ALEX

TAN CHOON KIAT, JEFFERY

Group General Manager

Group Business Development Manager

Group Financial Controller

Mr Long was appointed as our Group
General Manager in December 2015.
He is responsible for the business
strategy and development as well as
profitability of our Group. In addition
to his responsibilities for SUTL
Enterprise, Mr Long is concurrently
the Group General Manager of
the privately held SUTL Group of
Companies, managing its Consumer
Goods and Leisure divisions since
September 2015.

Mr Tay was appointed as the Special
Assistant to the CEO in February
2014 and redesignated as Group
Business Development Manager in
March 2016. He joined the privatelyheld SUTL Group of Companies in
2011 after graduation and has held
various positions within the company
before he joined SUTL Enterprise.

Mr Tan was appointed as Group
Financial Controller in August 2014.
He is responsible for the overall
financial management of the Group.

Mr Long has more than 25 years of
experience in general management
and marketing in real estate and fast
moving consumer goods in Singapore,
China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and
Vietnam with Far East Organization,
Keppel Land, Kimberly Clark, F&N
and Asia Pacific Breweries. He is a
graduate of the National University of
Singapore, School of Building & Estate
Management.
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Mr Tay looks after the Group’s
interests in the areas of business
expansion, potential new
markets segments as well as
the day-to-day operations of the
business development function.
He is concurrently the Business
Development Manager of SUTL Group
of Companies.
Mr Tay graduated from the Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology,
Australia with a Bachelor in Business
Management, majoring in Finance
and Accounting.

Mr Tan was a Senior Associate with
KPMG LLP and had several years of
experience as finance manager with
the privately-held SUTL Group of
Companies.
Mr Tan graduated from the National
University of Singapore and University
of Melbourne (U21 Global) with a
Bachelor in Business Administration
and Master in Business Administration
respectively. He is also a member
of Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants.

KEY EXECUTIVES

TEO JOO LENG

MICHELLE LIM

General Manager, ONE°15 Marina Club

Finance Manager, ONE°15 Marina Club

Mr Teo was appointed General
Manager of ONE°15 Marina Club,
Sentosa Cove, Singapore in August
2016. He is responsible for the
profitability and smooth operations
of the Group’s flagship marina. He
reports to Group General Manager, Mr
Long Jek Sun.

Ms Lim was appointed as Finance
Manager of ONE°15 Marina Club
in May 2016. She leads the Club’s
finance team and oversees a full
spectrum of financial functions
including performance management,
budgeting, forecasting, cash
management and sales analysis.

Mr Teo has more than 14 years of
experience in operations, sales and
marketing and general management in
Malaysia, India and Singapore with SIA
and Far East Hospitality.

Ms Lim was formerly with the
privately-held SUTL Group of
Companies before her appointment
at the club.

Prior to joining ONE°15 Marina Club,
Joo Leng was General Manager of
Oasia Hotel and Head of Corporate
Development & Planning responsible for
mapping out the future expansion plans
and fortifying brand standards at Far
East Hospitality.

Ms Lim has more than 6 years of
experience working with KPMG and
PWC in Singapore and Malaysia.
Ms Lim is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 2013 and the
Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountant (ISCA) since 2014.

Mr Teo graduated from the Nanyang
Technological University with a
Bachelor (2nd Upper Honours) in
Communication Studies.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

NKF patients and staff with CEO Mr. Arthur Tay at the ONE°15
Xmas Boat Light Parade.

ONE°15 staff volunteering at the Annual NKF year-end party for patients.

At SUTL, we believe that
profitability should not be the
sole purpose of our Group.
Sustainability Policies and Objectives

Commitment to Stakeholders

At SUTL, we believe that profitability should
not be the sole purpose of our Group.

• Shareholders
SUTL Enterprise is committed to uphold
sound corporate governance and
transparency practices in accordance to
MAS and SGX guidelines. These include
keeping shareholders informed of the
Group’s performance and latest corporate
developments through timely and accurate
announcements to the investment
community and media.

SUTL Enterprise’s CSR objectives are to
contribute to the society and community
that has enabled our success, fulfil our
commitment to stakeholders and to do no
harm to the environment as we carry out
our operational activities.

14
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
We provide public access to information
about SUTL Enterprise via Singapore
Stock Exchange’s SGXNET. All our
corporate announcements, press releases,
presentation slides and annual reports
are available on this channel. We conduct
regular results briefings to keep the
investment community updated about our
performance.
• Club members and business partners
SUTL Enterprise’s corporate vision is to
be a leading, premier integrated marina
developer. With every project that we
undertake, we ensure that we put in our
best effort to create a marina that is world
class and pleasing to club members,
business partners and the communities that
live around it.
• Employees
We are committed to the career and
personal development of each employee.
We equip them with the skills to do their
jobs well through on-the-job training
programmes and external training courses.
Commitment to the Community
SUTL Enterprise is an active partner in
NKF’s fund raising activities. In December
2016, staff from SUTL Enterprise joined
those of our parent company, the privately
held SUTL Group of Companies, to
participate in the NKF 30-Hour Override
challenge. Together 28 staff cycled for 30
hours non-stop for a total of 424.7km.
Every completed kilometre raised S$5 for
needy patients and together the amount
raised by our hardworking staff was
S$2,123.50.

NKF patients and staff on a cruise during the ONE°15 Xmas Boat Light Parade.

The annual NKF year-end party took
place at Whampoa Community Centre in
December 2016 hosted by SUTL Group of
Companies. Staff from SUTL Enterprise
once again joined those of our parent
company to bring cheer and raise the spirits
of patients and staff of NKF.
To thank NKF donors for their generous
support, SUTL Enterprise participated in
the Friends of NKF programme by offering
discounts at our WOK°15 restaurant at the
ONE°15 Marina Club Sentosa.
We look forward to lend our continued
support to NKF and other charities in
FY2017.
Commitment to the Environment
We strive to operate our marinas
responsibly. We have in place an
Environmental Management System to help
us achieve our environmental goals. The
system covers the following areas.

We comply with applicable environmental
laws and regulations. We prevent pollution,
reduce waste and consumption and commit
to recycling efforts in the Club’s operations.
We are the first marina in the region to
achieve ISO 14001, a prestigious and
internationally-recognised certification for
Environmental Management.
We embarked on our own Eco-initiative
– Project Perna which involved installing
strings of Green mussels or Perna Viridis
under the marina pontoon to remove
pollutants and provide an additional source
of food for marine life within the marina.
We also received accreditation as a “Fish
Friendly Marina” by the Marina Industries
Association (MIA). We are the first level
4 Clean Marina ISO 140001 marina to
achieve this recognition in South East Asia.
Additionally, we were also named Green
Maritime Company of the Year at the Asia
Boating Awards 2015.

ONE°15 staff participating in the NKF 30-Hour Override Kidney Disease Event.
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Corporate Governance
The Board of Directors (“Board”) recognises the importance of good corporate governance practices. This report describes
the Company’s corporate governance practices with references to the principles of the Code of Corporate Governance 2012
(“Code”).

(A)

BOARD MATTERS
The Board’s conduct of affairs
Principle 1: Every company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the company.
The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success of the company. The Board works with
Management to achieve this objective and Management remains accountable to the Board.
The Board is primarily responsible for setting corporate policy and overall strategy for the Company and has a direct
responsibility for decision making in respect of the following:
•

dealing with matters brought up by the Audit Committee, and in particular, the Group’s system of internal
controls;

•

reviewing the operational and financial performance of the Group, including but not limited to approving
announcements for the quarterly and full year financial results;

•

approving Annual Reports, addenda to Annual Reports and circulars;

•

approving the appointments and remuneration of Directors; and

•

reviewing corporate governance processes and practices within the Group.

In discharging these responsibilities, the Directors rely on, among other things, the Company’s officers and external
advisers.
Matters which are reserved for the Board’s decision include the following:

18

•

approving material acquisitions and disposal of assets (materiality thresholds applicable – any transaction
outside the ordinary course of business amounting to 3% or more of the relative figures set out in Rule 1006 of
the Listing Manual);

•

share issuances (including stock options or other equity awards), dividends and other capital transactions and
returns to shareholders;

•

any Interested Person Transaction of a value equal to, or more than, 3% of the Group’s latest audited net
tangible assets;

•

creating any fixed or floating charge, lien (other than a lien arising by operation of law) or other encumbrance
over the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking, property or assets of any company of the Group;

•

the Group giving any guarantee or indemnity to secure the liabilities or obligations of any third party amounting
to more than S$2.0 million;

•

the Group entering into any contract, arrangement, commitment or transaction of any nature whatsoever
amounting to more than S$2.0 million, that is not entered into in the ordinary and proper course of business on
arm’s length terms;
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•

capital expenses of the Group amounting to more than S$1.0 million; and

•

any matters involving a conflict or potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or a Director.

The functions of the Board are either carried out by the Board or delegated to various committees established
by the Board, namely, the Audit Committee (“AC”), the Nominating Committee (“NC”), the Remuneration Committee
(“RC”) and the Risk Management Committee (“RMC”). The RMC was dissolved and its duties will be carried out by
the AC with effect from 24 February 2017. Each committee has the authority to examine issues relevant to their terms
of reference and to make recommendations to the Board for action. The decisions on major policies and matters
lie with the Board.
The Board conducts regular scheduled meetings. Additional meetings are convened as and when
circumstances warrant. Notwithstanding the attendance of these meetings, the Board is of the view that a
Director’s contribution may also extend beyond the confines of the formal environment of such meetings, through
the sharing of views, advice, experience and strategic networking relationships which would further the interests
of the Company.
The Company does not currently have a formal training programme for new or existing Directors.
No new Directors were appointed during the financial year ended 31 December 2016 (“FY2016”). However, when a
new director is appointed, the Board will endeavour that all newly appointed Directors are given an orientation on the
Group’s business strategies, operations and organisation structure as well as the statutory and regulatory obligations
of being a Director to ensure that they are aware of their responsibilities and obligations of being a Director.
To keep pace with regulatory changes, the Directors are briefed on such changes by the auditors and/or the
Company’s lawyers from time to time during Board meetings.
The attendance of the Directors at Board and Board committee meetings in 2016, as well as the number of such
meetings, is disclosed in the table below.

Meetings
No. of meetings held

Main Board
4

Audit
Committee

Nominating
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

5

1

1

Directors
Lew Syn Pau (Independent)

4

5

1

1

Tay Teng Guan Arthur (Executive)

4

NA

1

NA

Tay Teng Hock (Non-Executive)

4

NA

NA

NA

Chan Kum Tao (Non-Executive)

4

5

NA

1

Ng Teck Sim Colin (Independent)

4

5

1

1

Board Composition and Guidance
Principle 2: There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise
objective judgment on corporate affairs independently, in particular, from Management and 10%
shareholders1. No individual or small group of individuals should be allowed to dominate the Board’s decision
making.
Together, the Directors bring a wide range of business, legal and financial experiences relevant to the Group and
provide an appropriate balance and diversity of skills and experience to the Board.

1

The term “10% shareholder” shall refer to a person who has an interest or interests in one or more voting shares in the Company
and the total votes attached to that share, or those shares, is not less than 10% of the total votes attached to all the voting
shares in the Company. “Voting shares” exclude treasury shares.
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The NC reviews annually the performance of members of the Board. It also reviews the independence of a
Director bearing in mind the Code’s definition of an ‘independent’ Director and guidance as to relationships the
existence of which would deem a Director not to be independent. It should be noted that Mr Ng Teck Sim Colin
is an Independent Director of the Company and a partner of a legal firm which may from time to time render
professional legal services to the Group. Nevertheless, the NC (excluding Mr Ng in respect of the deliberation
of his own independence) has considered Mr Ng to be independent as the billing is not substantial and he
is capable of maintaining his objectivity and independence at all times in the carrying out of his duties and
responsibilities as an Independent Director.
As Mr Lew Syn Pau has served on the Board for more than nine years, the NC (excluding Mr Lew in respect of the
deliberation of this matter) has conducted a review of his contributions to the Board to determine if he has maintained
his independence. The NC is satisfied with Mr Lew’s performance and that Mr Lew has remained independent in his
judgment and can continue to discharge his duties objectively. In its review, the NC noted that Mr Lew Syn Pau has
been an Independent Director since April 2000 and has served on the Board for more than nine (9) years. The NC
considered that there has been a change in the controlling shareholder in December 2009, when SUTL Global Pte.
Ltd. acquired shares of the Company representing 23.36% of the total number of issued shares from Mr Henry Lim
Yong Choon, who was then the controlling shareholder of the Company. The period from the change in the controlling
shareholding was less than nine (9) years.
The Board is satisfied as to the performance and continued independence of judgment of each of these Directors.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Principle 3: There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the leadership of the Board and
the executives responsible for managing the company’s business. No one individual should represent a
considerable concentration of power.
Mr Lew Syn Pau is the Chairman (Non-Executive) and Mr Tay Teng Guan Arthur is an Executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”).
The Chairman provides leadership to the Board. He holds a casting vote and sets the meeting agenda in close
consultation with the Board. The Chairman assumes the lead role in overseeing the corporate governance processes.
The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management of the affairs of the Group. He is accountable to the
Board for the overall performance of the Group’s business operations and strategic planning, and also executes
the strategic plans set out by the Board and ensures that the Directors are kept updated and informed of the
Group’s business through management reports.
The Group’s business is conducted by its employees, managers and corporate officers led by the CEO,
with oversight from the Board. The Board works with the CEO to elect/appoint other officers who are charged with
managing the businesses of the Group. The CEO has the responsibility of overseeing and directing the officers to
ensure that the interests of the Company are served.
Board Membership and Performance
Principle 4: There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment and re-appointment of
directors to the Board.
Principle 5: There should be a formal annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and its
board committees and the contribution by each director to the effectiveness of the Board.
The Board has authority to fill vacancies on the Board and to nominate candidates for election by the shareholders.
The screening process is handled by the NC with direct input from the other Directors.
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The NC currently comprises three members, namely:
Mr Ng Teck Sim Colin, Chairman of the NC 		 (Independent Director)
Mr Lew Syn Pau, Member of the NC 		 (Independent Director)
Mr Tay Teng Guan Arthur, Member of the NC 		 (Executive Director and CEO)
The NC’s key duties and responsibilities include the following:
(a)

determining annually, and as and when circumstances require, whether or not a Director is independent and
providing its views to the Board in relation thereto for the Board’s consideration;

(b)

reviewing the independence of any Director who has served on the Board for more than nine (9) years from the date
of his first appointment and the reasons for considering him as independent;

(c)

where a Director or proposed Director has multiple board representations, deciding whether the Director is able to
and has been adequately carrying out his duties as a Director, taking into consideration the Director’s number of
listed company board representations and other principal commitments;

(d)

where the appointment of an alternate Director to a Director is proposed, determining whether the alternate Director
is familiar with the Company’s affairs, is appropriately qualified and (in the case of an alternate Director to an
Independent Director) whether the alternate Director would similarly qualify as an Independent Director, and providing
its views to the Board in relation thereto for the Board’s consideration;

(e)

making recommendations to the Board of Directors on relevant matters relating to:
(i)

the review of board succession plans for Directors, in particular, the Chairman and for the CEO;

(ii)

the development of a process for evaluation of the performance of the Board, its board committees and
Directors;

(iii)

the review of training and professional development programs for the Board; and

(iv)

the appointment and re-appointment of Directors (including alternate Directors, if applicable);

(f)

proposing objective performance criteria and evaluating the performance of the Board of Directors as a
whole which allows for comparison with industry peers and address how the Board has enhanced long-term
shareholder value;

(g)

carrying out, at least annually, a formal assessment of the performance and effectiveness of the Board as a
whole and its board committees and (if applicable) the contributions of individual Directors to the effectiveness
of the Board of Directors, based on the process implemented by the Board;

(h)

providing its views and recommendations to the Board, including any appointment of new members, based on
the results of the performance evaluation;

(i)

reporting to the Board its findings from time to time on matters arising and requiring the attention of the NC;
and

(j)

undertaking such other reviews, projects, functions, duties and responsibilities as may be requested by the
Board of Directors.

A brief description of the background of each Director is presented on pages 10 and 11 of this Annual Report.
The Directors submit themselves for re-nomination or re-election at regular intervals of at least once every 3 years and
the Company’s Articles of Association requires one-third of the Directors for the time being (other than the Managing
Director), or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest one-third, to retire from office at each
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company. Retiring Directors are selected on the basis of those who have been
longest in office since their last election, failing which they shall be selected by agreement or by lot.
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The search and nomination process for new Directors, if any, will be via contacts and recommendations. The NC also
evaluates potential candidates and their suitability, and makes recommendations to the Board for approval.
Directors are allowed to hold directorships in companies outside the Group. The Board and the NC are of the
view that the current level of multiple board representations of the Directors does not hinder their ability to carry
out their duties as Directors of the Company. The Board believes that each Director has to personally determine
the demands of his or her competing directorships and obligations and assess how much time is available to serve
on the Board effectively, and this determination would be based on various factors and not only the number
of listed company board representations that the Director has. Further, the NC from time to time assesses
the independence of each Director, the performance of the Board as a whole, and the contribution of each
Director to the effectiveness of the Board. Accordingly, the Board has not set a maximum number of board
representations a Director may hold.
The Board is of the view that the current size of the Board is adequate and appropriate after taking into account the
size of the Group and the costs involved.
The NC assesses and makes recommendations to the Board as to whether the retiring Directors are suitable for reelection/re-appointment in consultation with the Chairman and CEO. The NC implements an assessment process
that requires each Director to submit an assessment of the performance of the Board, its board committees and of
individual Directors for the financial year under review.
Access to Information
Principle 6: In order to fulfill their responsibilities, directors should be provided with complete, adequate
and timely information prior to board meetings and on an on-going basis so as to enable them to make
informed decisions to discharge their duties and responsibilities.
Information and data relating to matters to be covered at a Board meeting are usually distributed to the Directors
before the meeting for their deliberation. On an on-going basis, the Directors have full access to the Company’s
senior management and the corporate secretarial agent should they have any queries or require additional
information on the affairs of the Company and the Group. The corporate secretarial agent attends all Board
Meetings.
Currently, there is no formal procedure for the Directors to take independent and professional advice to
discharge their duties. However, subject to prior approval of the Board, the Board and its committees may seek
legal, financial or other expert advice from any source independent of Management in furtherance of their duties
and in the event that circumstances warrant the same.

(B)

REMUNERATION MATTERS
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies
Principle 7: There should be a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive
remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of individual directors. No director should be involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
Level and Mix of Remuneration
Principle 8: The level and structure of remuneration should be aligned with the long-term interest and risk
policies of the company, and should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate ( a ) the directors to
provide good stewardship, and (b) key management personnel to successfully manage the company. However,
companies should avoid paying more than is necessary for this purpose.
Principle 9: Every company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policies, level and mix of
remuneration, and the procedure for setting remuneration, in the company’s Annual Report. It should provide
disclosure in relation to its remuneration policies to enable investors to understand the link between
remuneration paid to directors and key management personnel, and performance.
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The RC currently comprises three members, namely:
Mr Lew Syn Pau, Chairman of the RC
Mr Ng Teck Sim Colin, Member of the RC
Mr Chan Kum Tao, Member of the RC

(Independent Director)
(Independent Director)
(Non-Executive Director)

The RC’s duties and responsibilities include the following:
(a)

reviewing and recommending to the Board of Directors, a general framework of remuneration for the Directors
and key management personnel;

(b)

reviewing and recommending annually to the Board, the specific remuneration packages for each Director as
well as for the key management personnel, and in its review, to cover all aspects of remuneration, including but
not limited to Directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, options, share-based incentives and awards and
benefits-in-kind;

(c)

reviewing annually the remuneration of employees who are immediate family members of a Director or CEO
whose remuneration exceeds S$50,000 during the year;

(d)

reviewing the Company’s obligations arising in the event of termination of the Executive Directors and key
management personnel’s contracts of service;

(e)

ensuring that existing relationships, if any, between the Company and its appointed remuneration consultants
will not affect the independence and objectivity of the remuneration consultants;

(f)

reviewing whether Executive Directors, Non-Executive and Independent Directors and key management
personnel should be eligible for options, share incentives, awards and other benefits under the Schemes;

(g)

considering the advice from the RMC on risk weighting to be applied to performance objectives incorporated in
executive remuneration;

(h)

reviewing working environments and succession planning for Management;

(i)

reviewing the terms of the employment arrangements with Management so as to develop consistent groupwide employment practices subject to regional differences;

(j)

reporting to the Board of Directors its findings from time to time on matters arising and requiring the attention
of the Committee; and

(k)

undertaking such other reviews, projects, functions, duties and responsibilities as may be requested by the
Board of Directors.

In setting remuneration packages, the RC takes into account the performance of the Group, as well as individual
Directors and key management personnel, aligning their interests with those of shareholders, and linking rewards to
corporate and individual performance. The RC also considers the remuneration packages and employment conditions
within the industry and in comparable companies. No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
Directors are paid Directors’ fees, subject to approval at the Company’s AGM. The RC recommends to the Board
Directors’ fees that are appropriate to the level of contribution, taking into account factors such as effort and time
spent and responsibilities of Directors.
On 29 April 2011, the Company put in place a share option scheme approved by shareholders (the “Share Option
Scheme 2011”). Under this scheme, the number of shares in respect of which options may be granted shall be
determined at the discretion of the RC who shall take into account, inter alia, the rank, past performance, years of
service and potential contribution of the employee. Details of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
2011 are set out in the Directors’ Statement on pages 31 to 32 of this Annual Report.
Currently, the Company does not use contractual provisions to allow the Company to reclaim incentive components
of remuneration from Executive Directors and key management personnel in exceptional circumstances of
misstatement of financial results, or of misconduct resulting in financial loss to the Company. Generally, the Executive
Director receives a basic salary and Directors’ fees and bonus. For the key management personnel, the aggregate
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remuneration, including any bonus components, was not excessive. Further, as the Executive Director owes a fiduciary
duty to the Company, the Company should be able to avail itself to remedies against the Executive Director in the
event of a breach of such fiduciary duties.
The breakdown (in percentage terms) of the remuneration for FY2016, of Directors of the Company and the top key
management personnel who are not also Directors of the Company, is set out as below:

Remuneration band &
name of Directors

Variable or
performance
Base/fixed related income/
salary
bonus
%
%

Fees (1)
%

Benefits
Other
and
long term
allowances incentives
%
%

Total

Above S$250,000 Below S$500,000
Tay Teng Guan Arthur

60

15

15

5

5

100

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

100
100
100
100

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

100
100
100
100

Below S$250,000
Tay Teng Hock
Chan Kum Tao
Lew Syn Pau
Ng Teck Sim Colin
Note:
1.

Directors’ fees in an aggregate amount are subject to approval by shareholders at the Company’s forthcoming AGM.

Base/fixed
salary

Variable or
performance
related
income/
bonus

Fees

%

%

%

%

%

Long Jek Sun, Jack

72

15

–

7

6

100

Brian Eliot Werner
(Left on 11th June 2016)

59

21

–

20

–

100

Teo Joo Leng
(Joined on 22nd August 2016)

73

13

–

7

7

100

Tay Kuan Wee Alex

70

13

–

5

12

100

Tan Choon Kiat

72

12

–

6

10

100

Liew Siaw Chiun
(Left on 21st May 2016)

50

4

–

38

8

100

Lim Mei Xiu Michelle

83

16

–

1

–

100

Rudy Karel Puyst Jens

83

15

–

2

–

100

Remuneration band &
name of Top Key Management
Personnel

Other
Benefits and long term
allowances Incentives

Total

Below S$250,000
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The Board supports and is aware of the need for transparency. However, after deliberation, the Board has decided
to disclose the remuneration of Directors, the CEO, and the top key management personnel in remuneration bands
of S$250,000 and by a percentage breakdown in terms of categories and components instead of the specific
remuneration. The Board considered, inter alia, the competitive pressures, the sensitive nature of the matter and
potential for poaching of staff.
Total remuneration paid to the above top key management personnel (who are not Directors or the CEO) of the
Company for FY2016 was approximately S$760,000.
Mr Tay Teng Guan Arthur, an Executive Director and the CEO, is a sibling of Mr Tay Teng Hock, a Non-Executive
Director. Mr Tay Kuan Wee Alex, Group Business Development Manager, is the son of Mr Tay Teng Hock, a NonExecutive Director and the nephew of Mr Tay Teng Guan Arthur, Executive Director and CEO. The remuneration of
Mr Tay Kuan Wee Alex for FY2016 was within the band of S$50,000 to S$100,000. Other than the above, during the
financial year, the Company and its related companies did not employ any immediate family members of any Director
or the CEO and whose remuneration exceeded S$50,000 during the year.

(C)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Accountability
Principle 10: The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the company’s
performance, position and prospects.
The Board is responsible for providing a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects, including interim and other price sensitive reports and reports to regulators
(if required). Further, the Company adopts a policy which welcomes Directors to request for further explanations,
briefings or informal discussions on any aspects of the Group’s operations or business from senior management.
Risk Management and Internal Controls
Principle 11: The Board is responsible for the governance of risk. The Board should ensure that Management
maintains a sound system of risk management and internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ interests and
the company’s assets, and should determine the nature and extent of the significant risks which the Board is
willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.
The Board had established a RMC, which comprised three members, namely:
Mr Chan Kum Tao, Chairman of the RMC		(Non-Executive Director)
Mr Tay Kuan Wee Alex, Member of the RMC 		 (Group Business Development Manager)
Mr Tan Choon Kiat, Member of the RMC		(Group Financial Controller)
The RMC’s duties and responsibilities included the following:
(a)

determining and recommending the nature and extent of significant risks in achieving the Board’s strategic
objectives;

(b)

determining the Company’s levels of risk tolerance and risk policies, and overseeing Management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems;

(c)

advising on the Company’s overall risk tolerance and strategy;

(d)

overseeing and advising on the current risk exposures and future risk strategy of the Company;
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(e)

in relation to risk assessment:
(i)

keeping under review the Company’s overall risk assessment processes that inform the Board’s decision
making;

(ii)

reviewing regularly and approving the parameters used in these measures and the methodology
adopted; and

(iii)

setting a process for the accurate and timely monitoring of large exposures and certain risk types of
critical importance.

(f)

reviewing the Company’s capability to identify and manage new risk types;

(g)

before a decision to proceed is taken by the Board, advising on proposed strategic transactions, focusing
in particular on risk aspects and implications for the risk tolerance of the Company, and taking independent
external advice where appropriate and available;

(h)

reviewing reports on any material breaches of risk limits and the adequacy of proposed action;

(i)

reviewing and reporting to the AC, at least annually, the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal
controls, including financial, operational, compliance and information technology controls (such review can be
carried out internally or with the assistance of any competent third parties);

(j)

providing advice to the RC on risk weightings to be applied to performance objectives incorporated in executive
remuneration;

(k)

monitoring the independence of risk management functions throughout the organisation;

(l)

reviewing promptly all relevant risk reports on the Company; and

(m)

reviewing and monitoring Management’s responsiveness to the findings.

The RMC was dissolved and its duties will be carried out by the AC with effect from 24 February 2017.
The Management has in place a system of internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the assets of
the Group. It should be noted such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
our business objectives. It should be further noted that no system of internal controls can provide absolute assurance
in this regard, or absolute assurance against the occurrence of material errors, poor judgment in decision-making,
human error, losses, fraud or other irregularities.
The Board of Directors and the AC have reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls
including the Group’s financial, operational, compliance and information technology risks. Following from the foregoing
and based on work done by the internal and external auditors and reviews performed by Management throughout
FY2016, the Board, with the concurrence of the AC, is of the opinion that the systems of internal controls in place
to address financial, operational, compliance and information technology risks, and its risk management systems
are adequate in providing reasonable assurance of the effectiveness of the Group in safeguarding its assets and
shareholders’ value under the current business environment.
The Board has received assurance from the CEO and the Group Financial Controller that, as at 31 December 2016:

26

(a)

financial records have been properly maintained and the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
Group’s operations and finances; and

(b)

the Group’s risk management and internal control systems were adequate to address financial, operational,
compliance and information technology risks that the Company considers relevant and material to its
operations.
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Audit Committee
Principle 12: The Board should establish an Audit Committee with written terms of reference which clearly set
out its authority and duties.
The AC currently comprises three members, namely:
Mr Lew Syn Pau, Chairman of the AC
Mr Ng Teck Sim Colin, Member of the AC
Mr Chan Kum Tao, Member of the AC

(Independent Director)
(Independent Director)
(Non-Executive Director)

The AC is authorised by the Board to investigate matters within its terms of reference. The responsibilities of the
AC include:
(a)

reviewing the scope and results of the external audit and its cost effectiveness;

(b)

reviewing the independence and objectivity of the external auditors annually. Where the auditors also supply
a substantial volume of non-audit services to the Company, the AC shall keep under review the nature and
extent of such services, seeking to maintain objectivity;

(c)

reviewing the significant financial reporting issues and judgments and any formal announcements relating
to the Company’s financial performance;

(d)

reviewing the interim and annual financial statements and financial announcements;

(e)

after considering the report of the RMC, reviewing and reporting to the Board, at least annually, the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls, including financial, operational, compliance and information
technology controls (such review can be carried out internally or with the assistance of any competent third
parties);

(f)

reviewing the results of the internal auditors’ examination of the Group’s system of internal accounting controls and
any reports by the RMC on the Group’s system of internal controls;

(g)

monitoring the establishment, appointments, staffing, qualifications and experience of the Company’s internal
audit function, including approval of the appointment and compensation terms of the head of the internal audit
function, review of whether the internal audit function is adequately resourced, is independent of the activities
it audits, and has appropriate standing within the Company. The internal audit function can either be in-house,
outsourced to a reputable accounting/auditing firm, or performed by a major shareholder, holding company,
parent company or controlling enterprise with an internal audit staff;

(h)

reviewing, at least annually, the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function;

(i)

meeting with the external auditors, and with the internal auditors, without the presence of the Company’s
management, at least annually;

(j)

making recommendations to the Board on the proposals to shareholders on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

(k)

reviewing the policies and arrangements by which staff of the Company may, in confidence, raise concerns
about any possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters and ensuring that
arrangements are in place for the independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow up
action;

(l)

reviewing, at least annually, any Interested Persons Transactions (IPT);
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(m)

reviewing any matters relating to suspected fraud or irregularity, or suspected infringement of any Singapore
laws or regulations or rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) or any other
regulatory authority in Singapore, of which the AC is aware, which has or is likely to have a material impact
on the Company’s or Group’s operating results and/or financial position, and the findings of any internal
investigations, and management’s response thereto; and

(n)

reviewing any reports or recommendations made by the RMC from time to time.

During FY2016, the AC held five meetings. The external auditors were in attendance at three of these meetings, and
the internal auditor was in attendance at four of these five meetings.
The AC has reviewed all non-audit services to the Group by the external auditors, and is satisfied that the nature and
extent of such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the external auditors. The independence
of the external auditors is reviewed by the AC annually. The Company confirms that it has complied with Rules 712
and 715 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST in relation to its auditing firms. The audit service and non-audit service
fees paid or payable for FY2016 are stated in Note 7 to the financial statements.
The Group also has a “Whistle Blowing Policy” which provides an independent and confidential channel for employees
to communicate concerns of wrongdoings, malpractices and illegal acts directly to the AC Chairman.
The external auditors provide regular updates and briefings to the AC on changes or amendments to accounting
standards, which would enable the members of the AC to keep abreast of such changes and its corresponding impact
on the financial statements, if any.
Internal Audit
Principle 13: The company should establish an effective internal audit function that is adequately resourced
and independent of the activities it audits.
To ensure that the Management maintains a good system of internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets, the internal audit was conducted by the internal auditor who reported directly to
the AC Chairman. To ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function, the AC reviews the scope
of work of the internal audit manager on an annual basis.
Non-compliance and internal control weaknesses noted during internal audits and the recommendations
thereof are reported to the AC as part of the review of the Group’s internal control system.
The AC and the Board are satisfied that there are adequate internal controls for the Group.

(D)

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Shareholder Rights
Principle 14: Companies should treat all shareholders fairly and equitably, and should recognise, protect
and facilitate the exercise of shareholders’ rights, and continually review and update such governance
arrangements.
Communication with Shareholders
Principle 15: Companies should actively engage their shareholders and put in place an investor relations policy
to promote regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders.
Conduct of Shareholder Meetings

28

SUTL Enterprise Limited

Annual Report 2016

Corporate Governance
Principle 16: Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at general meetings of
shareholders, and allow shareholders the opportunity to communicate their views on various matters affecting
the company.
All shareholders of the Company receive a copy of the Annual Report and notice of the Company’s AGM. The
notice is also advertised in the newspaper and made available via timely SGXNET announcements.
The AGM is the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders. The Company encourages active shareholder
participation at its general meetings. The Board, the corporate secretarial agent, senior management and the
Company’s external auditors were present and available to address questions at the Company’s AGM held on
28 April 2016.
The declaration of dividends, if any, is to be recommended by the Directors and subject to the approval of the
shareholders by ordinary resolution. The Company’s dividend policy is to distribute dividends based on the Company’s
performance, taking into consideration the resources needed for the Company’s continuing and future operations and
possible future plans. After considering the Company’s dividend policy, the Company was of the opinion that it was in
the Company’s interest to distribute a dividend of 2.0 Singapore cents per share representing 44.9% of the Company’s
net attributable profit in FY2016.
Shareholders and investors may communicate with the Company and, as the case may be, submit any notices of
interests, via the Company’s investor relations email address of investors_relations@sutl.com.

(E)

OTHER MATTERS
Interested Person Transactions
For FY2016, there were no Interested Person Transactions entered into (excluding transactions less than S$100,000),
including that there were no Interested Person Transactions (excluding transactions less than S$100,000) conducted
under the shareholder’s mandate pursuant to Rule 920.
Material Contracts
Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there were no material contracts entered into by the Company or its
subsidiaries involving the interests of the CEO, Directors or controlling shareholders which were still subsisting as at
31 December 2016 or if not then subsisting, entered into since 31 December 2015.
Securities Transactions
The Group has adopted and implemented an internal policy governing securities transaction by its officers and
employees. Under the internal policy, officers and other employees are reminded that (i) officers should not deal in
the Company’s securities on short term considerations and (ii) the Company and its officers should not deal in the
Company’s securities during the period commencing two weeks before the announcement of the Company’s financial
statements for each of the first three quarters of its financial year and one month before the announcement of the
Company’s full year financial statements.
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Directors’ statement
The directors are pleased to present their statement to the members together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of SUTL Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the balance sheet
and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

Opinion of the directors
In the opinion of the directors,
(i)

the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the
Company are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 December 2016 and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in
equity of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(ii)

at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts
as and when they fall due.

Directors
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:
Lew Syn Pau
Tay Teng Guan Arthur
Tay Teng Hock
Chan Kum Tao
Ng Teck Sim Colin

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose objects
are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures
The following directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, had, according to the register of directors’
shareholdings required to be kept under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50, an interest in the shares
of the Company and related corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) as stated below:
Direct interest
At the
beginning of
At the end of
financial year
financial year
The Company
Ordinary shares
Tay Teng Guan Arthur
Lew Syn Pau
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–
100,000

Deemed interest
At the
beginning of
At the end of
financial year
financial year

47,377,642
44,000

47,389,942
44,000

Directors’ statement
Directors’ interests in shares and debentures (cont’d)
Direct interest
At the
beginning of
At the end of
financial year
financial year
Achieva Technology Pte Ltd
Ordinary shares
Tay Teng Guan Arthur

–

–

Deemed interest
At the
beginning of
At the end of
financial year
financial year

20,400,000

–

By virtue of his direct interest in SUTL Global Pte. Ltd, Mr Tay Teng Guan Arthur is deemed, under Section 7 of the Singapore
Companies Act, Chapter 50, to have an interest in all the shares held by SUTL Global Pte. Ltd.
There was no change in any of the above-mentioned interests in the Company between the end of the financial year and 21
January 2017.
Except as disclosed in this report, no director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests in shares, share
options, warrants or debentures of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning of the financial year, or at
the end of the financial year.

Share options
Share Option Scheme 2011 for the employees of the Group and directors of the Company (“SOS 2011”) was approved by
the members of the Company at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 29 April 2011.
Pursuant to the SOS 2011, participants would be granted options to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company, and the
options granted will have an exercise period expiring at the end of five years (for Non-Executive Directors) and ten years (for
the employees of the Group) from the date of the grant.
The exercise price is at:
•

a price which is equivalent to the market price (as determined under the rules of the SOS 2011); or

•

a price which is set at a discount to the market price (as determined under the rules of the SOS 2011), provided that
the maximum discount shall not exceed 20% of the market price.

The options will be exercisable after the expiration of the first and second anniversaries of the date the options are granted.
The SOS 2011 is administered by the Remuneration Committee whose members are:
Lew Syn Pau			
Chan Kum Tao		
Ng Teck Sim Colin 		

(Chairman)
(Member)
(Member)

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, there were no options granted to subscribe for unissued ordinary shares
in the Company and there were no shares issued by virtue of the exercise of the options.

Annual Report 2016

SUTL Enterprise Limited

31

Directors’ statement
Share options (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2016, there were no outstanding options to subscribe for unissued ordinary shares in the Company (2015:
Nil).
Details of the options to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company granted to directors, controlling shareholders and their
associates and employees of the Group pursuant to SOS 2011 are as follows:

Options granted
during the
financial year
under review

Name of holders

Aggregate
options
granted since
commencement
of Scheme to
end of financial
year under
review

Aggregate
options under
commencement
of Scheme to
end of financial
year under
review

Aggregate
options
outstanding as
at year end of
financial year
under review

SOS 2011
Directors

–

–

–

–

Controlling shareholder and his associates

–

–

–

–

Employees

–

–

–

–

Aggregate options granted since commencement of SOS 2011 to end of the financial year under review is 2,300,000 (2015:
2,300,000).
Since the commencement of the SOS 2011 till the end of the financial year:
–

No options have been granted to the controlling shareholder of the Company and his associates;

–

No holder has received 5% or more of the total options available under the SOS 2011;

–

No options have been granted to directors of the Company and its subsidiaries;

–

No options that entitle the holder to participate, by virtue of the options, in any share issue of any other corporation
have been granted; and

–

No options have been granted at a discount.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee (“AC”) carried out its functions in accordance with the Listing Manual and the Code of Corporate
Governance. The functions performed and further details are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.
The AC has nominated Ernst & Young LLP for re-appointment as auditor of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.
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Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment as auditor.

On behalf of the board of directors:

Lew Syn Pau
Director

Tay Teng Guan Arthur
Director

Singapore
24 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of SUTL Enterprise Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of SUTL Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”), which comprise the balance sheets of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2016, the statements of
changes in equity of the Group and the Company and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group, the balance sheet and the statement of
changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter
50 (the Act) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (FRSs) so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and of the consolidated
financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the
Company for the year ended on that date.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA)
Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (ACRA Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
We have fulfilled our responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of SUTL Enterprise Limited

Key audit matters (cont’d)
Impairment of trade and other receivables
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s gross trade and other receivables amounted to approximately $5.6m and $5.2m
respectively. Allowance for doubtful trade and other receivables amounted to approximately $2.8m and $4.7m respectively.
Trade and other receivables impairment assessment requires significant management judgment in assessing these debtors’
ability to pay as well as the use of estimates in determining the quantum of the allowance. As such, we determined that this
is a key audit matter.
As part of the audit, we obtained an understanding of the Group’s processes and controls relating to the monitoring of
trade and other receivables and management’s consideration of the receivables’ aging in identifying collection risks. The
procedures we performed included sending confirmations for selected debtors and reviewing for collectability by way of
obtaining evidence of receipts from the debtors subsequent to the year end. As determining the allowance for doubtful debts
requires significant management estimates, we assessed management’s estimates used to calculate the trade and other
receivables impairment/write back amount, through analysis of aging of receivables and assessment of significant overdue
individual debtors. We considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures on the trade and other receivables and the related
risks such as credit risk and liquidity risk in Notes 15 and 26 to the financial statements.
Carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately $16.8m which is
approximately 27% of the Group’s total assets. The Group performed an assessment and determined that the carrying
amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment approximates the recoverable amount of these assets. As discussed in
Note 12, the recoverable amount of the property plant and equipment was determined based on the value in use calculations
using the Group’s cashflow projections which include key estimates and assumptions that are inherently judgmental.
Therefore, we considered this significant to our audit.
As part of the audit, we obtained an understanding of the Group’s process to assess the appropriateness of the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment. To assess the appropriateness of the cash flows projections, we evaluated
management’s key estimates and assumptions with reference to the Group’s historical performance and our understanding of
the Group’s strategic initiatives. We involved our internal valuation specialist to assist in our review of the discount rate used
by the Group, and we also checked the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow projections and agreed the relevant data
to the budget approved by the board of directors. We considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures on the carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment in Note 12 to the financial statements.
Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
director’s statement and the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of SUTL Enterprise Limited

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide
a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are
properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements
and to maintain accountability of assets.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

36

•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

SUTL Enterprise Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of SUTL Enterprise Limited

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (cont’d)
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiary
corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ng Boon Heng.

Ernst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore
24 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

(Amounts expressed in Singapore dollars)
Note

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

4
4
5

19,670
6,924
1,602
28,196

19,042
7,144
1,502
27,688

6

(10,299)
(1,170)
(1,803)
(3,526)
(2,091)
(1,433)
(819)
(34)
(363)
(2,156)
(23,694)

(9,718)
(1,164)
(1,863)
(3,909)
(2,321)
(1,788)
(817)
–
(296)
(1,599)
(23,475)

4,502

4,213

(648)

(630)

3,854

3,583

–

(3,516)

Profit for the year

3,854

67

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company
Profit from continuing operations, net of tax
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax

3,854
–

3,583
(1,966)

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company

3,854

1,617

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Sales of goods and services
Membership related fees and management fees
Other income
Total income
Items of expense
Salaries and other employee benefits
Advertising, publication and event expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales
Repair, maintenance and cleaning expenses
Utilities
Property tax
Provision for inventory obsolescence and doubtful debts
Bank and credit card charges
Other operating expenses
Total expenses

12
14

7

Profit before tax from continuing operations
Income tax expense

8

Profit from continuing operations, net of tax
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax

9

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

(Amounts expressed in Singapore dollars)
Note

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Earnings per share from continuing operations attributable to owners of
the Company (cents)
Basic

10

4.46

5.54

Diluted

10

4.46

5.54

Basic

4.46

2.50

Diluted

4.46

2.50

–

(1,550)

Profit for the year

3,854

67

Other comprehensive loss:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation, representing total other comprehensive loss,
net of tax
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

–
3,854

(227)
(160)

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

–
–
3,854

1,500
(1,660)
(160)

3,854
–
3,854

3,583
(2,083)
1,500

Earnings per share from total operations attributable to owners of the
Company (cents)

Non-controlling interests
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, attributable to non-controlling
interests

Attributable to owners of the Company
Total comprehensive income from continuing operations, net of tax
Total comprehensive loss from discontinued operations, net of tax

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Balance Sheets
As at 31 December 2016

(Amounts expressed in Singapore dollars)
Group

Company

Note

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

12
13

16,823
–
16,823

17,674
–
17,674

–
17,415
17,415

3
19,802
19,805

14
15

192
3,483
416
159
41,269
45,519

222
3,866
429
47
34,540
39,104

–
505
–
249
36,974
37,728

–
403
–
57
31,058
31,518

–
45,519

22,711
61,815

–
37,728

–
31,518

62,342

79,489

55,143

51,323

17
17
17
18

3,465
–
–
2,453
809
6,727

4,623
13
–
2,166
682
7,484

–
–
6,000
381
17
6,398

–
–
8,500
314
–
8,814

9

–
6,727

17,693
25,177

–
6,398

–
8,814

38,792

36,638

31,330

22,704

1,393

1,429

–

–

8,120

26,606

6,398

8,814

54,222

52,883

48,745

42,509

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments
Due from related companies
Cash and cash equivalents

15
16

Assets of disposed group classified as discontinued
operations

9

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Due to related companies
Loan from a subsidiary
Other liabilities
Income tax payable
Liabilities of disposed group classified as
discontinued operations

Net current assets
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

19

Total liabilities
Net assets

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Balance Sheets
As at 31 December 2016

(Amounts expressed in Singapore dollars)
Group

Company

Note

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

20

46,780
7,442
–
54,222

46,780
3,588
(117)
50,251

40,810
7,935
–
48,745

40,810
1,699
–
42,509

–

2,632

–

–

Total equity

54,222

52,883

48,745

42,509

Total equity and liabilities

62,342

79,489

55,143

51,323

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital
Retained earnings
Other reserves

Non-controlling interests

21

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of changes in equity
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

(Amounts expressed in Singapore dollars)
Attributable to owners of the Company

Equity, total
$’000

Equity
attributable
to owners
of the
Company,
total
$’000

Share capital
(Note 20)
$’000

52,883

50,251

46,780

3,588

(117)

2,632

3,854

3,854

–

3,854

–

–

Disposal of a subsidiary

(2,515)

117

–

–

117

(2,632)

Total changes in
ownership interest in
subsidiaries

(2,515)

117

–

–

117

(2,632)

Balance as at 31
December 2016

54,222

54,222

46,780

7,442

–

–

Group

Retained
earnings
$’000

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve
(Note 21(b))
$’000

Noncontrolling
interests
$’000

2016
Balance as at
1 January 2016
Profit for the year,
representing total
comprehensive income
for the year
Changes in ownership
interest in subsidiaries

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of changes in equity
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

(Amounts expressed in Singapore dollars)
Attributable to owners of the Company

Group

Equity, total
$’000

Equity
attributable
to owners
of the
Company,
total
$’000

Share capital
(Note 20)
$’000

Retained
earnings
$’000

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve
(Note 21(b))
$’000

Noncontrolling
interests
$’000

2015
Balance as at
1 January 2015

23,071

23,071

20,100

2,971

–

–

67

1,617

–

1,617

–

(1,550)

Foreign currency
translation, representing
other comprehensive loss
for the year, net of tax

(227)

(117)

–

–

(117)

(110)

Total comprehensive
(loss)/income for the
year

(160)

1,500

–

1,617

(117)

(1,660)

26,680

26,680

26,680

–

–

–

4,292

–

–

–

–

4,292

(1,000)

(1,000)

–

(1,000)

–

–

Total transactions with
owners in their capacity
as owners

29,972

25,680

26,680

(1,000)

–

4,292

Balance as at 31
December 2015

52,883

50,251

46,780

3,588

(117)

2,632

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Contributions by and
distributions to owners
Consideration shares
issued in relation to the
reverse acquisition
Non-controlling interests of
acquired subsidiary in the
reverse acquisition
Dividends paid
(Note 24)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of changes in equity
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

(Amounts expressed in Singapore dollars)
Share-based
compensation
reserve
(Note 21(a))
$’000

Equity,
total
$’000

Share
capital
(Note 20)
$’000

Retained
earnings
$’000

42,509

40,810

1,699

–

6,236

–

6,236

–

48,745

40,810

7,935

–

27,608

23,395

3,491

722

(2,514)

–

(2,514)

–

–

–

722

(722)

Issuance of shares for acquisition of subsidiary, representing
total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

17,415

17,415

–

–

Balance as at 31 December 2015

42,509

40,810

1,699

–

Company

2016
Balance as at 1 January 2016
Profit for the year, representing total comprehensive
income for the year
Balance as at 31 December 2016
2015
Balance as at 1 January 2015
Loss for the year, representing total comprehensive loss for
the year
Transfer of share-based compensation reserve to retained
earnings
Contributions by owners

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

(Amounts expressed in Singapore dollars)
Note

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

4,502
–
4,502

4,213
(3,516)
697

1,803
117
34
38
–
–
–
–
1,992
6,494

1,863
–
227
–*
20
(242)
352
(227)
1,993
2,690

Changes in working capital:
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade, other receivables and prepayments
(Increase)/decrease in due from related company
Decrease in trade, other payables and other liabilities
Decrease in due to related companies
Total changes in working capital

30
462
(112)
(871)
(13)
(504)

120
3,265
163
(3,242)
(175)
131

Cash flows generated from operations
Income tax paid
Net cash flows generated from operating activities

5,990
(557)
5,433

2,821
(70)
2,751

–
(990)
(1,744)
(2,734)

1,030
(597)
–
433

Operating activities
Profit before tax from continuing operations
Loss before tax from discontinued operations
Profit before tax, total
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Realisation of translation reserve on disposal of a subsidiary
Allowance for doubtful receivables, net
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Bargain purchase on reverse acquisition
Loss recognised on remeasurement of fair value less cost to sell
Currency realignment
Total adjustments
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital

12

9

Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Net cash outflows on disposal of a subsidiary
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from investing activities

12
13(f)

* Amount is less than $1,000.

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(Amounts expressed in Singapore dollars)
Note

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

24
13(e)

–
–
–
–

(1,000)
24,544
5,474
29,018

2,699

32,202

Financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders
Net cash inflow from reverse acquisition
Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Net cash flows generated from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January

16

38,570

6,368

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December

16

41,269

38,570

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
46

SUTL Enterprise Limited

Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1.

Corporate information

1.1

The Company
SUTL Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Singapore and
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”). The ultimate holding company is SUTL
Global Pte. Ltd. which is incorporated in Singapore.
The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at 100J Pasir Panjang Road, #05-00,
SUTL House, Singapore 118525.
The principal activities of the Company are those of investment holding and provision of management services.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements. There have been no
significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

1.2

The Reverse Acquisition
On 10 June 2015, the Company acquired the entire equity interest in SUTL Marina Development Pte. Ltd. (“MD”) and
ONE15 Luxury Yachting Pte. Ltd. (“LY”) for a purchase consideration of $17,415,000 that was satisfied via the issue of
341,463,414 new shares of the Company at the prevailing share price of $0.051 (“Acquisition”).
With the completion of the Acquisition, the Group comprises:
(I)

SUTL Enterprise Limited and its Operating Subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Achieva Group”) and

(II)

SUTL Marina Development Pte. Ltd. and ONE15 Luxury Yachting Pte. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “SUTL
Group”)

At Group level
The Acquisition has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition in accordance with FRS 103, and the legal subsidiary
SUTL Group was deemed to be the acquirer for accounting purposes. Accordingly, the consolidated income
statement, consolidated balance sheet, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow
statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 were presented as a continuation of the SUTL Group’s
financial results and operations.
Since such consolidated financial statements represent a continuation of the financial statements of the SUTL Group:
(a)

the assets and liabilities of the SUTL Group were recognised and measured in the balance sheets at their
carrying amounts;

(b)

the retained earnings and other equity balances recognised in the consolidated financial statements were the
retained earnings and other equity balances of the SUTL Group before the Acquisition;

(c)

the cost of the acquisition by the legal subsidiary, the SUTL Group, for its interest in the Achieva Group (i.e.
legal parent) is based on the number of equity interests that the SUTL Group had to issue to the shareholders
of the Achieva Group, to give the shareholders of the Achieva Group the same percentage of equity interest in
the Group that resulted from the reverse acquisition. It is determined using the fair value of the issued equity of
the Company just before the Acquisition;

(d)

the amount recognised as issued equity interests in the consolidated financial statements was determined by
adding the issued equity of SUTL Group immediately before the reverse acquisition to the fair value of Achieva
Group. However, the equity structure appearing in the consolidated financial statements (i.e. the number and
type of equity instruments issued) shall reflect the equity structure of the legal parent, (i.e. the Company),
including the equity instruments issued by the legal parent (i.e. the Company) to effect the Acquisition;
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1.

Corporate information (cont’d)

1.2

The Reverse acquisition (cont’d)
At Group level (cont’d)
(e)

the assets and liabilities of Achieva Group were recognised and measured in accordance with FRS 103
Business Combination;

(f)

the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2015 reflects the full year result of SUTL
Group acquired pursuant to the acquisition together with the post-acquisition results of Achieva Group; and

(g)

earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 reflects the results of the legal subsidiary (i.e. the
SUTL Group) till the date of the Acquisition, and the results of the Group from the date of the Acquisition.

At Company level
Reverse acquisition accounting applies only at the consolidated financial statements at the Group level. In the
Company’s separate financial statements, the investment in subsidiaries is accounted for at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting
policies below.
The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars (“SGD or $”), and all values in the tables are rounded to
the nearest thousand (“$’000”) as indicated, except when otherwise indicated.
The Accounting Standards Council announced on 29 May 2014 that Singapore incorporated companies listed on the
Singapore Exchange will apply a new financial reporting framework identical to the International Financial Reporting
Standards. The Group will adopt the new financial reporting framework on 1 January 2018.

2.2

Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except that in the current
financial year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised standards which are effective for annual financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The adoption of these standards did not have any effect on the financial
performance or position of the Group and the Company.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.3

Standards issued but not yet effective
The Group has not adopted the following standards applicable to the Group that have been issued but not yet
effective:
Effective for annual
periods beginning on
or after

Description
Amendments to FRS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to FRS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
FRS 109 Financial Instruments
FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
FRS 116 Leases
Amendments to FRS 110 and FRS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2019
Date to be
determined*

*	The mandatory effective date of this Amendment had been revised from 1 January 2016 to a date to be determined by the
Accounting Standards Council Singapore in December 2015 via Amendments to Effective Date of Amendments to FRS 110 and
FRS 28.

Except for FRS 109, FRS 115 and FRS 116, the directors expect that the adoption of the other standards above will
have no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application. The nature of the impending
changes in accounting policy on adoption of FRS 109, FRS 115 and FRS 116 are described below.
FRS 109 Financial Instruments
FRS 109 introduces new requirements for classification and measurement of financial assets, impairment of financial
assets and hedge accounting. Financial assets are classified according to their contractual cash flow characteristics
and the business model under which they are held. The impairment requirements in FRS 109 are based on
an expected credit loss model and replace the FRS 39 incurred loss model. Adopting the expected credit losses
requirements will require the Group to make changes to its current systems and processes.
Under FRS 109, the Group will be required to measure the investment at fair value. Any difference between the
previous carrying amount and the fair value would be recognised in the opening retained earnings when the Group
applies FRS 109.
FRS 109 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.
Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not compulsory. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of FRS 109 and plans to adopt the standard on the required effective date.
FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
FRS 115 establishes a five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under FRS
115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in FRS 115 provide a more structured
approach to measuring and recognising revenue when the promised goods and services are transferred to the
customer i.e. when performance obligations are satisfied.
Key issues for the Group include identifying performance obligations, accounting for contract modifications, applying
the constraint to variable consideration, measuring progress toward satisfaction of a performance obligation and
addressing disclosure requirements.
Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
with early adoption permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact of FRS 115 and plans to adopt the new
standard on the required effective date.
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2.3

Standards issued but not yet effective (cont’d)
FRS 116 Leases
FRS 116 requires lessees to recognise most leases on balance sheets to reflect the rights to use the leased assets
and the associated obligations for lease payments as well as the corresponding interest expense and depreciation
charges. The standard includes two recognition exemption for lessees – leases of ‘low value’ assets and short-term
leases. The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of the new standard and plans to adopt the new standard on the required
effective date. The Group expects the adoption of the new standard will result in increase in total assets and total
liabilities, EBITDA and gearing ratio.

2.4

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(a)

Reverse acquisition
The acquisition of the entire equity interest in the SUTL Group has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition
as described in Note 1.2.

(b)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at the end of the reporting period. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent
accounting policies are applied to like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.
Subsidiaries comprising the Achieva Group are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

50

de-recognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at
the date when control is lost;
de-recognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;
de-recognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
recognises the fair value of the consideration received;
recognises the fair value of any investment retained;
recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and
re-classifies the Group’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income to
profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(c)

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or
liability, will be recognised in profit or loss.
The Group elects for each individual business combination, whether non-controlling interest in the acquiree
(if any), that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in
the event of liquidation, is recognised on the acquisition date at fair value, or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Other components of non-controlling interest are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by another FRS.
Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business combination, the
amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. In instances where the latter amount exceeds the former, the excess is recognised as
gain on bargain purchase in profit or loss on the acquisition date.

2.5

Transactions with non-controlling interest
Non-controlling interest represent the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners of the
Company.
Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

2.6

Foreign currency
The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars (“SGD”), which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
(a)

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating
those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the end
of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss except for exchange differences arising on monetary
items that form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The foreign
currency translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the Group on disposal of the foreign
operation.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.6

Foreign currency (cont’d)
(b)

Consolidated financial statements
For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into SGD at the rate of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period and their profit or loss are translated at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised
in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.
In the case of a partial disposal without loss of control of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences is re-attributed to non-controlling
interest and is not recognised in profit or loss. For partial disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities
that are foreign operations, the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.7

Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, property, plant
and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying property, plant and equipment. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Leasehold land
Leasehold building
Renovations
Furniture and fittings
Office and operating equipment
Motor vehicles
Pontoons and fixtures
Computers
Other equipment

Remaining lease term
Remaining lease term
5 - 10 years
7 years
5 years
10 years
3 - 10 years
3 years
7 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.
An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the asset is included in profit or loss in the
year the asset is de-recognised.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.8

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an investee that is controlled by the Group. The Group controls an investee when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee.
In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment
losses.

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.
Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in profit or loss, except for assets that are previously
revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also
recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such
reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

2.10

Financial instruments
(a)

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial
assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are de-recognised or impaired, and through the amortisation
process.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.10

Financial instruments (cont’d)
(a)

Financial assets (cont’d)
De-recognition
A financial asset is de-recognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired.
On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

(b)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised, and through the amortisation process.
De-recognition
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

2.11

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.11

Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss.
When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial asset is reduced directly or if an
amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged to the allowance account are written off against
the carrying value of the financial asset.
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been incurred, the
Group considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
default or significant delay in payments.
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of
reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

2.12

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits.

2.13

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition are accounted for on a first-in first-out basis.
Where necessary, allowance is provided for damaged, obsolete and slow moving items to adjust the carrying value of
inventories to the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.14

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.15

Government grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to income, the government grant is recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. They are deducted in reporting the related expenses.

2.16

Employee benefits
(a)

Defined contribution plans
The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the countries in which it has
operations. In particular, the Singapore companies in the Group make contributions to the Central Provident
Fund scheme in Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution
pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

(b)

Employee share option plans
Employees of the Group may receive remuneration in the form of share options as consideration for services
rendered.
The cost of these equity-settled share based payment with employees is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the date on which the options are granted which takes into account market conditions
and non-vesting conditions. This cost is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding increase in the
employee share option reserve, over the vesting period. The cumulative expense recognised at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of options that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employee benefits expense.
The employee share option reserve is transferred to retained earnings upon the forfeiture of the share option
scheme.

(c)

Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they are accrued to the employees.
The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled after the end of the reporting period is recognised
for services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

2.17

Discontinued operations
Disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. Disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. A component of the Group is classified as a ‘discontinued
operation’ when the criteria to be classified as held for sale have been met or it has been disposed of and such a
component represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.18

Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payments and excluding
discounts, rebates, and sales taxes or duty.
(a)

Sales of goods and services
Sales of goods and services comprise all income and proceeds from sales resulting from the operations of the
marina and all facilities therein and are recognised as and when goods and services are provided. Revenue
arising from chartering of vessels is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the contracted charter periods.

(b)

Membership related fees and management fees
Membership related fees comprises all income relating to the club membership.
Subscription fee
Subscription fee is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the subscription.
Entrance fee
Entrance fee is recognised when the member is elected into full membership.
Transfer fee
Transfer fee is recognised upon transfer of membership.
Management fee
Management fee is recognised as and when services are provided.

2.19

Taxes
(a)

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, in the countries
where the Group operates and generates taxable income.
Current income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Annual Report 2016

SUTL Enterprise Limited

57

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.19

Taxes (cont’d)
(b)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
•

where the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

•

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised except:
•

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

•

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on
acquisition.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.19

Taxes (cont’d)
(c)

Sales tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:

2.20

•

where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

•

receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

Share capital and share issuance expenses
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.

2.21

Leases
As lessee
Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term,
if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

2.22

Contingencies
A contingent liability is:
(a)

a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group; or

(b)

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
(i)
(ii)

it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; or
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the balance sheet of the Group, except for contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that are present obligations and which the fair values can be reliably determined.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

2.23

Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:
(a)

a person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group and the Company if that person:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions applies:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)
(vii)

3.

has control or joint control over the Company;
has significant influence over the Company; or
is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or Company.

the entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);
one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member);
both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company or an
entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Company;
the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and
a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Significant accounting judgements and estimates
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the
future periods.

3.1

Judgements made in applying accounting policies
Management is of the opinion that there are no critical judgements (other than those involving estimates) that have a
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

3.2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period are discussed below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
Impairment of trade and other receivables
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that trade and other receivables have
been impaired. Impairment loss is calculated based on a review of the current status of existing receivables and
historical collections experience. Such allowances are adjusted periodically to reflect the actual and past experience.
The carrying amount of the Group’s loans and receivables at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Note 15 to
the financial statements.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates (cont’d)

3.2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)
Carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
The Group assesses the carrying value of property, plant and equipment on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating unit. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The key assumptions applied in the determination of the value in use, are disclosed
and further explained in Note 12 to the financial statements.
The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
Note 12 to the financial statements.

4.

Revenue
Revenue represents sales of goods and provision of services in the normal course of business.

5.

Other income
Group
2016
$’000
Bad debts recovered
Interest income
Bargain purchase on reverse acquisition
Income on insurance claim
Boat light parade income
Consultancy income
Reversal of legally time-barred claims
Others

6.

2015
$’000

520
420
–
4
9
–
184
465
1,602

757
145
242
103
57
15
–
183
1,502

Salaries and other employee benefits
Group
2016
$’000
Wages, salaries and bonuses
Contributions to defined contribution plan
Other short-term benefits

8,272
864
1,163
10,299

Annual Report 2016

2015
$’000
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780
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6.

Salaries and other employee benefits (cont’d)
Share Option Scheme
Under the Share Option Scheme 2011 (“SOS 2011”), the Company may grant options to employees of the Group and
directors of the Company. The options granted are exercisable after the expiration of the first and second anniversaries
of the date the options are granted. There are no cash settlement alternatives. These options do not entitle the holder
to participate, by virtue of the options, in any share issue of any other corporation.
The SOS 2011 is effective from 29 April 2011 for a maximum period of 10 years.
No options were granted in the financial year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. There were no options outstanding
at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

7.

Other operating expenses
Group
2016
$’000
Professional fees and insurance fees
Printing and stationery expenses
Security services
Sentosa admission fees
Fees paid/payable to auditor of the Company
- Audit fees
- Non-audit fees
Royalty fee
Travelling expenses
Staff uniform
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange loss/(gain)
Others

*
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566
272
269
182
130
46
24
112
21
38
29
467
2,156

2015
$’000
448
316
169
151
118
10
96
58
28
–*
(82)
287
1,599
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8.

Income tax expense
Major components of income tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are:
Group
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income:
Current income tax
- Current income tax
- Over provision in respect of previous years

688
(4)

692
(56)

Deferred income tax
- Origination and reversal of temporary differences
- (Over)/under provision in respect of previous years
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

(28)
(8)
648

(66)
60
630

Relationship between tax expense and profit before tax
The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of profit before tax multiplied by the applicable corporate tax
rate for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:
Group
2016
$’000
Profit before tax from continuing operations
Loss before tax from discontinued operations (Note 9)
Profit before tax

2015
$’000

4,502
–
4,502

4,213
(3,516)
697

765

(54)

322
(110)
(128)
(205)
–
(6)
(12)
22
648

633
(82)
(46)
(108)
280
–
4
3
630

Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profits in the countries where the Group
operates
Adjustments:
Non-deductible expenses
Income not subject to taxation
Effect of partial tax exemption and tax relief
Enhanced deductions
Deferred tax assets not recognised
Benefits from previously unrecognised tax losses
(Over)/under provision in respect of previous years
Others
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

The above reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliations for each national jurisdiction.
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9.

Discontinued operations
On 8 January 2016, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“SPA”) with SCE Enterprise Pte. Ltd.,
(“SCE”) and Serial System Ltd (“Serial”), pursuant to which the Company has agreed to sell to SCE an aggregate
of 20,400,000 ordinary shares in the share capital of Achieva Technology Pte Ltd (“ATPL”) (the “Sale Shares”). The
Sale Shares represent 51% of the entire issued and paid-up capital of ATPL. As at 31 December 2015, the assets
and liabilities relating to ATPL have been presented in the balance sheet as “Assets of disposal group classified as
discontinued operations” and “Liabilities of disposal group classified as discontinued operations”, and its results are
presented separately on profit or loss as “Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax”.
On 27 January 2016, the Company completed the disposal of its 51% of equity interest in ATPL for a cash
consideration of $2,386,800.
Balance sheet disclosures
The major classes of assets and liabilities of discontinued operations as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:
Group
2015
$’000

64

Assets:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables and other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets of disposal group classified as discontinued operations

127
7
10,610
7,937
4,030
22,711

Liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Bank loans
Income tax payable
Liabilities of disposal group classified as discontinued operations
Net assets of disposal group classified as discontinued operations

(8,170)
(9,520)
(3)
(17,693)
5,018
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9.

Discontinued operations (cont’d)
Income statement disclosures
The results of discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows:
Group
2015
$’000
Revenue
Expenses
Loss from operations
Finance costs
Loss recognised on remeasurement of fair value less costs to sell
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax

42,294
(45,365)
(3,071)
(93)
(352)
(3,516)

Cash flow statement disclosures
The cash flows attributable to discontinued operations are as follows:
Group
2015
$’000
Operating
Investing
Financing
Net cash outflows

(6,194)
(49)
5,474
(769)

Loss per share disclosures
Group
2015
Loss per share from discontinued operations attributable to owners of the Company
Basic (cents)

3.04

Diluted (cents)

3.04

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued operations
is calculated by dividing the loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, attributable to owners of the Company
amounting to $1,966,000 by the weighted average number of 64,663,000 ordinary shares, after taking into account the
effect of share consolidation.
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10.

Earnings per share
Continuing operations
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit from continuing operations, net of tax, attributable to
owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares during the financial year, after taking into
account the effect of share consolidation.
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations is calculated by dividing profit from continuing operations, net
of tax, attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all
the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
The following table reflects the profit and share data used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015:
Group
2016
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company ($’000)
Add back: Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, attributable to the owners
of the Company ($’000)
Profit from continuing operations, net of tax, attributable to owners of the Company
used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share ($’000)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic and diluted earnings per
share computation (‘000)
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents)

2015

3,854

1,617

–

1,966

3,854

3,583

86,461
4.46

64,663
5.54

The diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per share as the Company does not have any
dilutive potential ordinary shares for the financial years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
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11.

Related party transactions
(a)

Sale and purchases of goods and services
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following
significant transactions between the Group and related parties took place on terms agreed between the parties
during the financial year:
Group
2016
$’000
Sale of goods and services to directors and director-related companies
Purchase of goods and services from director-related companies
Payment on behalf of director-related companies
Payment on behalf for director-related company
Sales proceeds from disposal of motor vehicle to a director-related company

(b)

2015
$’000

345
315
126
34
–

253
475
–
–
862

Compensation of key management personnel
Group
2016
$’000
Salaries, bonuses and other costs
Directors’ fee
Employer’s contribution to defined contribution plans

Comprise amounts paid to:
Directors of the Company
Other key management personnel

2015
$’000

930
258
46
1,234

1,134
258
69
1,461

472
762
1,234

412
1,049
1,461
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3,357

At 31 December 2016

9,006

9,433

28,912
519
(92)
29,339

10,654
198
–
10,852

3,555

28,392
520
–

38,345
–
–
38,345

14,209
–
–
14,209

10,456
198
–

38,345
–
–

14,209
–
–

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2015

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment loss
At 1 January 2015
Charge for the year
Disposals
At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016
Charge for the year
Disposals
At 31 December 2016

Cost
At 1 January 2015
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2016

Group

1,636

1,495

404
281
–
685

199
205
–

1,899
422
–
2,321

1,685
214
–

Leasehold Leasehold
land
building Renovations
$’000
$’000
$’000

Property, plant and equipment

270

334

2,412
71
(108)
2,375

2,406
86
(80)

2,746
7
(108)
2,645

2,664
170
(88)

285

299

1,772
118
(15)
1,875

1,737
125
(90)

2,071
213
(124)
2,160

2,076
87
(92)

Furniture Office and
and
operating
fittings equipment
$’000
$’000

31

83

393
52
–
445

1,237
116
(960)

476
17
(17)
476

2,434
9
(1,967)

Motor
vehicles
$’000

1,743

2,108

12,274
382
(2)
12,654

11,886
388
–

14,382
16
(1)
14,397

14,376
7
(1)

361

196

1,771
142
(1)
1,912

1,674
165
(68)

1,967
308
(2)
2,273

1,939
105
(77)

134

171

662
40
–
702

612
60
(10)

833
7
(4)
836

841
5
(13)

Pontoons
and
Other
fixtures Computers equipment
$’000
$’000
$’000

16,823

17,674

59,254
1,803
(218)
60,839

58,599
1,863
(1,208)

76,928
990
(256)
77,662

78,569
597
(2,238)

Total
$’000
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12.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
Appropriateness of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using the cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by management. The pre-tax discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections and the forecasted long term growth rates used to extrapolate cash flow projections was
11.5% and 1% respectively.
Key assumptions used in the value in use calculations:
The calculations of value in use are most sensitive to the following assumptions:
Budgeted gross margins – Gross margins are based on past performance and expectation of market developments.
Growth rates – The forecasted growth rates are based on forecast included in industry reports and do not exceed the
long-term average growth rate for the industries relevant to the Group.
Pre-tax discount rates – Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to the Group.
The estimated recoverable value of property, plant and equipment closely approximates the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2016.
Furniture and
fittings
$’000

Office
equipment
$’000

Computer
$’000

Total
$’000

Company
Cost:
At 1 January 2015
Additions

3
–

18
–

46
4

67
4

At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016
Additions
At 31 December 2016

3
–
3

18
–
18

50
–
50

71
–
71

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2015
Charge for the year
At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016
Charge for the year
31 December 2016

3
–

18
–

46
1

67
1

3
–
3

18
–
18

47
3
50

68
3
71

Net carrying value:
At 31 December 2015

–

–

3

3

At 31 December 2016

–

–

–

–
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13.

Investment in subsidiaries
(a)

Unquoted equity shares
Company

Unquoted equity shares, at cost
Additions
Disposals
Impairment losses

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

48,875
–
(20,400)
28,475
(11,060)
17,415

31,460
17,415
–
48,875
(29,073)
19,802

Movements in allowance for impairment loss on investment in subsidiaries during the financial year are as
follows:
At 1 January
Additions
Reversal due to disposal of a subsidiary (Note 13f)
At 31 December

29,073
–
(18,013)
11,060

26,572
2,501
–
29,073

Impairment testing of investment in subsidiaries
Impairment loss of $2,501,000 was recognised for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 to impair the
investment in Achieva Technology Pte Ltd to its estimated recoverable amount, based on the consideration for
disposal of 51% equity interest.
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13.

Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(b)

Composition of the Group
The Group has the following investment in subsidiaries:
Name
(Country of incorporation
and place of business)

Principal activities

Proportion (%) of
ownership interest
2016
2015

Cost of
investment
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

Held by SUTL Enterprise Limited
*

SUTL Marina Development
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Operating and maintaining
a marina and its annexes
(“One°15 Marina Club”)

100

100

17,328

17,328

*

ONE15 Luxury Yachting
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Yacht chartering

100

100

87

87

*

SUTL Marina Holdings
Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Investment holding

100

100

–#

–#

***

Achieva Technology Pte Ltd
(Singapore)

Distribution of information
technology computer
peripherals parts, software
and related products

–

51

–

20,400

**

Achieva Investments Pte Ltd
(Singapore)

Investment holding

100

100

11,060

11,060

28,475

48,875

#

Amount is less than $1,000.
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13.

Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(b)

Composition of the Group (cont’d)
Name
(Country of incorporation
and place of business)

Principal activities

Proportion (%) of
ownership interest
2016
2015

Held through Achieva Technology Pte Ltd
***

Achieva Technology Sdn. Bhd.
(Malaysia)

Distribution of information technology,
computer peripherals parts, software and
related products

–

100

***

Achieva Technology Australia Pty
Ltd (Australia)

Distribution of information technology,
computer peripherals parts, software and
related products

–

100

***

Achieva Technology Vietnam Co.,
Ltd
(Vietnam)

Distribution of information technology,
computer peripherals, parts, software and
related products

–

100

–

99

100

100

100

100

Held through Achieva Technology Sdn. Bhd.
***

Achieva Service Centre Sdn. Bhd.
(Malaysia)

Dormant

Held through SUTL Marina Development Pte. Ltd
*

ONE15 Management and Technical
Services Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

Provision of business and management
consultancy services and provision of
management and technical services for
marina activities

Held through Achieva Investments Pte Ltd
**

*
**
***
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Audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore
In the process of winding up
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13.

Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(c)

Interest in subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest (NCI)
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has no interest in subsidiaries with material NCI.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group has the following subsidiaries that have NCI that are material to the Group.

Name of subsidiary

31 December 2015:
Achieva Technology Pte
Ltd and its subsidiaries

Principal place
of business

Singapore

Proportion
of ownership
interest held by
NCI

49%

Loss allocated
to NCI during the
reporting period

Accumulated NCI
at the end of the
reporting period

$’000

$’000

(1,550)

(2,632)

Significant restrictions:
There was no significant restriction on the Group’s ability to use or access assets and settle liabilities of
subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests.
(d)

Summarised financial information about subsidiaries with material NCI
Summarised financial information including consolidation adjustments but before intercompany elimination of
subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests are as follows:
Summarised balance sheets
Achieva
Technology
Pte Ltd and its
subsidiaries
As at 31
December 2015
$’000
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net current assets
Non-current assets
Net assets

22,577
(17,693)
4,884
134
5,018
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13.

Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(d)

Summarised financial information about subsidiaries with material NCI (cont’d)
Summarised statements of comprehensive income
Achieva
Technology
Pte Ltd and its
subsidiaries
2015
$’000
Revenue

42,294

Loss before and after income tax

(3,164)

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive loss

(227)
(3,391)

Other summarised information
Achieva
Technology
Pte Ltd and its
subsidiaries
2015
$’000
Net cash flows used in operating activities

(6,194)

Net cash flows used in investing activities

(49)

Net cash flows from financing activities
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13.

Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(e)

Acquisition of subsidiaries
As mentioned in Note 1.2, the acquisition of the SUTL Group was completed during the financial year ended 31
December 2015 via the issue of 341,463,414 shares for $17,415,000.
The Acquisition has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition in accordance with FRS 103, and the legal
subsidiary, the SUTL Group, was deemed to be the acquirer for accounting purposes.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities as at the acquisition date were:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
$’000
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables and other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets on acquisition of Achieva Group

127
27
10,674
11,617
24,544
46,989

Trade and other payables
Bank loans
Income tax payable
Total liabilities on acquisition of Achieva Group

(11,723)
(4,046)
(3)
(15,772)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value
Bargain purchase on reverse acquisition
Non-controlling interests
Imputed consideration of Achieva Group

31,217
(242)
(4,295)
26,680
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13.

Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(f)

Disposal of a subsidiary
As mentioned in Note 9, the Company had disposed of its 51% of equity interest in ATPL in January 2016. The
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of ATPL and the effect thereof as at date of disposal were as follows:
Cashflow on
disposal
$’000
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables and other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

127
7
10,610
7,937
4,030
22,711
(8,170)
(9,520)
(3)
(17,693)

Trade and other payables
Bank loans
Income tax payable

Net carrying amounts of assets disposed
Less: Non-controlling interest
Sales proceeds
Less: Sales proceeds receivable in FY2017
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary disposed
Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary

14.

5,018
(2,632)
2,386
(100)
(4,030)
(1,744)

Inventories
Group
2016
$’000
Balance sheet:
Food and beverage
Sundry stores and others

Statement of comprehensive income:
Inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales
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2015
$’000

171
21
192

175
47
222

3,526

3,909
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15.

Trade and other receivables
Group
2016
$’000

Company
2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Trade and other receivables:
Trade receivables
Other receivables:
Refundable deposits
Other receivables
Total trade and other receivables
Add: Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 16)
Add: Due from related companies
Total loans and receivables

2,764

3,020

–

–

208
511
3,483

335
511
3,866

7
498
505

1
402
403

41,269
159
44,911

34,540
47
38,453

36,974
249
37,728

31,058
57
31,518

Trade receivables
Trade receivables mainly relate to receivables in respect of subscription fee and marina operations and management.
These are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 90 days’ term. They are recognised at their original
invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.
Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group has trade receivables amounting to $1,018,000 (2015: $1,047,000) that are past due at the end of the
reporting period but not impaired. These receivables are unsecured and the analysis of their aging at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
Group
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Trade receivables past due but not impaired:
1 to 30 days
30 to 90 days
More than 90 days

484
209
325
1,018
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15.

Trade and other receivables (cont’d)
Trade receivables that are impaired
The Group’s trade receivables that are impaired at the end of the reporting period and the movement of the allowance
accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:
Group

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables

Movements in allowance accounts:
At 1 January
Allowance for the year
Write back of allowance for doubtful trade receivables
Written off against allowance
At 31 December

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2,804
(2,804)
–

3,741
(3,741)
–

3,741
512
(478)
(971)
2,804

4,419
844
(828)
(694)
3,741

Other receivables
Group
2016
$’000
Debt reassigned
Interest receivable on fixed deposits
Others

447
51
13
511

Company
2015
$’000
340
62
109
511

2016
$’000
447
51
–
498

2015
$’000
340
62
–
402

During the year ended 31 December 2014, in connection with the disposal of non-controlling interest in a subsidiary,
the Company entered into a reassignment agreement with a subsidiary to reassign trade debts owing by a customer
in the Philippines to the Company and reclassified as Other Receivables. Accordingly, the allowance for doubtful trade
receivables had also been reassigned to the Company.
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15.

Trade and other receivables (cont’d)
Other receivables that are impaired
The Group’s other receivables that are impaired at the end of the reporting period and the movement of the allowance
accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:
Group

Other receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables

Movements in allowance accounts:
At 1 January
Reclassified allowance for doubtful receivables
Write back of allowance for doubtful receivables
Currency realignment
At 31 December

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

5,155
(4,708)
447

5,457
(5,117)
340

5,117
–
(520)
111
4,708

–
5,238
(481)
360
5,117

Due from related companies
Group
2016
$’000

Due from subsidiaries
Due from related companies

–
159
159

Company
2015
$’000

2016
$’000

–
47
47

249
–
249

2015
$’000

57
–
57

These amounts are trade and non-trade in nature, unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and are to
be settled in cash.
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15.

Trade and other receivables (cont’d)
Due from subsidiaries that are impaired
The amount due from subsidiaries that are impaired at the end of the reporting period and the movement of the
allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:
Company
2016
$’000
Due from subsidiaries
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables

Movements in allowance accounts:
At 1 January
Write-back
Write-off
At 31 December

2015
$’000

249
–
249

500
(443)
57

443
(42)
(401)
–

443
–
–
443

Trade and other receivables denominated in foreign currency as at 31 December are as follows:
Group
2016
$’000
United States dollars

16.

Company
2015
$’000

458

402

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

447

402

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following at the end of the reporting period:
Group

Fixed deposits
Cash at bank and on hand
Cash and cash equivalents

Company

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

34,080
7,189
41,269

25,684
8,856
34,540

34,080
2,894
36,974

25,684
5,374
31,058

Fixed deposits of the Group and the Company at the end of the reporting period have an average tenure of 3 months
(2015: 3 months) and 3 months (2015: 3 months) respectively. The effective interest rates of fixed deposits of the
Group and the Company are 1.3% (2015: 1.1%) and 1.3% (2015: 1.1%) per annum respectively.
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16.

Cash and cash equivalents (cont’d)
Cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currency as at 31 December are as follows:
Group
2016
$’000
United States dollars

Company
2015
$’000

3,581

2,704

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

3,453

2,704

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following as at the end of
reporting period:
Group
2016
$’000
Cash and short-term deposits:
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operation (Note 9)
Cash and cash equivalents

17.

2015
$’000

41,269
–
41,269

34,540
4,030
38,570

Trade and other payables
Group
2016
$’000

Company
2015
$’000

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Trade payables
Advanced subscription fees
Deferred revenue
Deposits
Other payables
Total trade and other payables

53
524
477
1,927
484
3,465

704
589
532
1,323
1,475
4,623

–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–

Add: Other liabilities (Note 18)
Add: Due to related companies
Add: Loan from a subsidiary
Less: Advanced subscription fees
Less: Deferred revenue
Less: GST payable
Less: Advances from customers
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

2,453
–
–
(524)
(477)
(295)
(160)
4,462

2,166
13
–
(589)
(532)
(293)
(170)
5,218

381
–
6,000
–
–
–
–
6,381

314
–
8,500
–
–
–
–
8,814
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17.

Trade and other payables (cont’d)
Trade payables/other payables
These amounts are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60 days’ terms.
Due to related companies/loan from a subsidiary
These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and are to be settled in cash.

18.

Other liabilities
Group
2016
$’000
Accrued staff costs
Accrued operating expenses
Advances from customers

19.

936
1,357
160
2,453

Company
2015
$’000
1,026
970
170
2,166

2016
$’000

2016
$’000

–
381
–
381

–
314
–
314

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax as at 31 December relates to the following:
Group
2016
$’000
Deferred tax liabilities
- Differences in depreciation and tax allowance for tax purposes
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20.

Share capital
Group
2016
No. of shares
’000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
At 1 January
Issued for acquisition of subsidiaries in reverse
acquisition

Share consolidation (ratio 10:1)*
At 31 December

2015
No. of shares
’000

$’000

$’000

86,461

46,780

523,143

20,100

–
86,461

–
46,780

341,463
864,606

26,680
46,780

86,461

46,780

86,461

46,780

Company
2016
No. of shares
’000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
At 1 January
Issued for acquisition of subsidiaries in reverse
acquisition (Note 13)

Share consolidation (ratio 10:1)*
At 31 December

$’000

2015
No. of shares
’000

$’000

86,461

40,810

523,143

23,395

–
86,461

–
40,810

341,463
864,606

17,415
40,810

86,461

40,810

86,461

40,810

*During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was a share consolidation of the ratio of 10:1.

The Group
The share capital of the Group as at 1 January 2015 refers to the combined paid-up capital of the SUTL Group. The
equity structure of the Group was determined by adding the issued equity of SUTL Group immediately before the
reverse acquisition to the fair value of Achieva Group.
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20.

Share capital (cont’d)
The Company
Pursuant to the reverse acquisition, the Company acquired the entire equity interest in MD and LY for $17,415,000
during the financial year ended 31 December 2015. The purchase consideration was satisfied via the issue of
341,463,414 new shares of the Company. The fair value of the issued equity of the Company just before the
acquisition amounted to $26,680,000.
Subsequently, the resultant share capital of 864,606,110 ordinary shares was consolidated into 86,460,602 ordinary
shares. Consequently, the share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2015 comprised 86,460,602 ordinary
shares amounting to $40,810,000.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary
shares carry one vote per share without restriction. The ordinary shares have no par value.

21.

Other reserves
(a)

Share-based compensation reserve
Share-based compensation reserve represents equity-settled share options granted to employees. The reserve
is made up of cumulative fair value of services received from employees and is recorded over the vesting
period commencing from the grant date of equity-settled share options. During the year ended 31 December
2015, the share-based compensation reserve was transferred to retained earnings as all options granted under
SOS 2011 scheme have been forfeited.

(b)

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation
of financial statements of operations whose functional currencies are different from that of the Group’s
presentation currency.
During the year, the foreign currency translation reserve was realised upon disposal of a subsidiary.

22.

Contingent liabilities and commitments
Service commitments
The Group has entered into commercial contracts for the provision of services. These contracts have an average
tenure of between one and five years with renewal options included in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed
upon the Group by entering into these commercial contracts. Minimum payments recognised as an expense in profit
or loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to $2,338,000 (2015: $2,872,000).
Future minimum payments payable under non-cancellable commercial contracts at the end of reporting period are as
follows:
Group
2016
$’000
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

84

SUTL Enterprise Limited

Annual Report 2016

1,348
677
2,025

2015
$’000
1,629
405
2,034

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

23.

Segment information
The marina segment is managed as a single operating segment and it only has operations in Singapore.

24.

Dividends on ordinary shares
Group and Company
2016
2015
$’000
$’000
Declared and paid to the then-existing shareholder of a subsidiary during the
financial year:
Interim one-tier tax exempt dividend for 2016: $Nil (2015: $0.05) per share

–

1,000

1,729

–

Proposed but not recognised as a liability as at 31 December:
Final one-tier tax exempt dividend for 2016: $0.02 (2015: $Nil) per share

Prior to the reverse acquisition, SUTL Marina Development Pte. Ltd. declared a one-tier tax exempt interim dividend
of $0.05 per ordinary share, totalling $1,000,000 in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2015 to the thenexisting sole shareholder, SUTL Leisure Pte. Ltd.

25.

Fair value of assets and liabilities
The Group does not have assets or liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis in
the balance sheet after initial recognition. The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values due to their short-term nature.

26.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The key
financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies and procedures for the management of these risks, which are executed by the management. It is, and has
been throughout the current and previous financial year, the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative
purposes shall be undertaken.
The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the
objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.
There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risks.
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26.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(a)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty default
on its obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other
receivables and amounts due from related companies. For other financial assets (including cash and cash
equivalents), the Group and the Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterparties.
The Group has put in place internal mechanisms to monitor the granting of credit and management of credit
exposures which ensure that the sales of products and services are made to creditworthy members and
customers.
Exposure to credit risk
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in balance sheets.
Credit risk concentration
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single member.
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are with creditworthy debtors with good
payment record with the Group. Cash and cash equivalents that are neither past due nor impaired are placed
with reputable financial institutions.
Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
Other financial assets that are either past due or impaired are disclosed in Note 15 (Trade and other
receivables).

(b)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations
due to shortage of funds. The Group and the Company monitor their liquidity risks and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the Group’s and the Company’s operations
and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
All the financial liabilities of the Group and the Company are due within a year and approximate the contractual
undiscounted repayment obligations of the Group and the Company.
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26.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(c)

Foreign currency risk
The Group and the Company has transactional currency exposures primarily United States Dollar (“USD”)
arising from sales or purchases that are denominated in currencies other than the respective functional
currencies of Group entities.
The Group and the Company also hold cash and cash equivalents denominated in USD.
Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax to a reasonably possible change
in the USD exchange rates against the respective functional currency of the Group, with all other variables held
constant.
Group
Increase/(decrease)
Profit before tax
2016
2015
$’000
$’000
USD/SGD - strengthened 10% (2015: 10%)
- weakened 10% (2015:10%)

27.

404
(404)

311
(311)

Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains sufficient cash in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by the sum of capital and net debt.
Net debt includes trade and other payables, other liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Capital refers to equity
attributable to owners of the Company.
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, there is no gearing ratio as the Group is in a net cash position.
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28.

Comparative figures
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year’s financial statements to conform with the current year’s
presentation. These reclassifications have no impact on the Group’s profit for the year.
Group
Previously
As restated
reported
$’000
$’000
Consolidated statement of comprehensive
income
Inventory recognised as an expenses in cost of
sales
Repair, maintenance and cleaning expenses
Balance sheets
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities

29.

Company
Previously
reported
As restated
$’000
$’000

2,782
3,448

3,909
2,321

N.A.
N.A.

N.A.
N.A.

N.A.
N.A.

N.A.
N.A.

314
–

–
314

Authorisation of financial statements for issue
The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on 24 March 2017.
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Number of treasury shares		
Number of subsidiary holdings
Class of shares			
Voting right				

:
:
:
:

Nil (0%)
Nil (0%)
Ordinary shares
One vote per ordinary share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS
1 - 99
100 - 1,000
1,001 - 10,000
10,001 - 1,000,000
1,000,001 AND ABOVE
TOTAL

NO. OF
SHAREHOLDERS

%

NO. OF SHARES

%

11
1,278
1,383
376
7
3,055

0.36
41.83
45.27
12.31
0.23
100.00

421
619,535
6,097,480
18,887,509
60,855,657
86,460,602

0.00
0.72
7.05
21.84
70.39
100.00

NO. OF SHARES

%

47,389,942
5,103,800
2,197,221
2,150,700
1,582,253
1,387,300
1,044,441
955,500
793,640
577,500
555,000
498,581
471,800
444,700
422,200
418,000
320,928
294,090
275,600
265,500
67,148,696

54.81
5.90
2.54
2.49
1.83
1.60
1.21
1.11
0.92
0.67
0.64
0.58
0.55
0.51
0.49
0.48
0.37
0.34
0.32
0.31
77.67

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
NO.
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

NAME
SUTL GLOBAL PTE LTD
MAYBANK KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE. LTD.
OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
SINGAPORE TONG TEIK PTE LTD
PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD
HONG LEONG FINANCE NOMINEES PTE LTD
DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
GOH GUAN SIONG (WU YUANXIANG)
CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD
OCBC NOMINEES SINGAPORE PRIVATE LIMITED
CHAI CHEE KENG
LO JU JIE
UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE) LIMITED
DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD
YU MAN-LI
CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
UOB KAY HIAN PRIVATE LIMITED
SIM LEY LING @ SHARON
CHENG TAI FOON
TOTAL
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Beneficial interest
No. of shares

%

Deemed interest No.
of shares

No

Name

%

1.

SUTL Global Pte. Ltd.

2.

Tay Teng Guan Arthur

(a)

The deemed interest of Tay Teng Guan Arthur arises by virtue of his direct interest of approximately 51% in the issued and paid up
capital of SUTL Global Pte. Ltd.

47,389,942

54.81

–

–

0

0

47,389,942

54.81

(a)

PERCENTAGE OF SHAREHOLDING IN PUBLIC HANDS
45.19% of the total number of issued ordinary shares capital of the Company is held by the public. Accordingly, the Company
has complied with Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of SGX-ST.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
(Company No: 199307251M)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty-Third Annual General Meeting of SUTL Enterprise Limited will be held at Constellation
1, ONE°15 Marina Club, #01-01, 11 Cove Drive, Sentosa Cove, Singapore 098497, on 28 April 2017 at 2.30 p.m. for the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.
To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016.
				
(Resolution 1)
2.

To declare a first and final 1-tier tax exempt dividend at 2 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2016. 			
(Resolution 2)

3.

To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees of S$258,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016.

(Resolution 3)

4.
To re-elect Mr. Tay Teng Hock as Director retiring under Article 104 of the Articles of Association of the Company.
				
(Resolution 4)
5.

To re-elect Mr. Ng Teck Sim Colin as Director retiring under Article 104 of the Articles of Association of the Company.		
			
(Resolution 5)

6.

To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young LLP as Auditors of the Company to hold office until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.
(Resolution 6)

SPECIAL BUSINESS
7.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions with or without any modification as Ordinary
Resolutions:
(a)

“That pursuant to and subject to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 and the Listing Manual of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), and the approval of the SGX-ST, authority be and
is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to issue shares in the capital of the Company and convertible
securities that might or would require new shares in the capital of the Company to be issued including but
not limited to the creation and issue of (as well as adjustments to) warrants, debentures or other instruments
convertible into shares (whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise or in pursuance of any offer, agreement
or option made or granted by the Directors during the continuance of this authority which would or might
require shares or convertible securities to be issued during the continuance of this authority or thereafter) at
any time to such persons and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may in
their absolute discretion deem fit (notwithstanding that such issue of shares pursuant to the offer, agreement or
option or the conversion of the convertible securities may occur after the expiration of the authority contained
in this Resolution), provided that:
(i)

the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued pursuant to this Resolution
shall not exceed fifty per cent. (50%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company excluding
any treasury shares (“Issued Shares”), and provided further that where shareholders of the Company
with registered addresses in Singapore are not given an opportunity to participate in the same on a prorata basis, then the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued other than on a
pro-rata basis to all shareholders of the Company shall not exceed twenty per cent. (20%) of the Issued
Shares (“General Limit”);

(ii)

for renounceable rights issues on a pro-rata basis, subject to the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST, and the
approval of the SGX-ST, the aggregate number of shares to be issued by way of renounceable rights
issues on a pro-rata basis, when added to all of the shares issued pursuant to sub-paragraph (i) above,
shall not exceed 100 per cent. (100%) of the Issued Shares (“Enhanced Rights Issue Limit”);
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and for the purpose of this Resolution, the percentage of Issued Shares shall be based on the Company’s
issued share capital at the time this Resolution is passed (after adjusting for (a) new shares arising from
the conversion or exercise of convertible securities, (b) new shares arising from exercising share options or
vesting of share awards outstanding or subsisting at the time this Resolution is passed, provided the options
or awards were granted in compliance with the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST and (c) any subsequent bonus
issue, consolidation or subdivision of shares), and unless revoked or varied by ordinary shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting is required by law to
be held, whichever is earlier.”
(Resolution 7)
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(b)

“That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors to offer and grant options in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme 2011 (the “Option Scheme”) approved by Shareholders in general
meeting on 29 April 2011 as may be amended from time to time, and pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies
Act, Cap. 50, to allot and issue from time to time such number of shares in the Company as may be required
to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options under the Option Scheme (notwithstanding that such
allotment and issue may occur after the conclusion of the next or any ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company), provided always that the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to the Option Scheme,
when added to (a) the aggregate number of shares issued or issuable in respect of any other share-based
schemes of the Company (if any) and (b) the number of treasury shares delivered in respect of the options
granted under all the other share-based incentive schemes of the Company (if any), shall not exceed fifteen per
cent. (15%) of the issued shares (excluding treasury shares) of the Company.”
(Resolution 8)

(c)

“That the Directors be and are hereby authorised to make purchases (whether by way of market purchases
or off-market purchases on an equal access scheme) from time to time of ordinary shares representing up
to ten per cent. (10%) of the total number of issued ordinary shares in the capital of the Company (excluding
any ordinary shares held as treasury shares) as at the date of the last Annual General Meeting or the date of
this Resolution, whichever is the higher, unless the Company has effected a reduction of the share capital
of the Company in which event the number of issued ordinary shares of the Company shall be taken to be
the number of the issued ordinary shares of the Company as altered (excluding any ordinary shares held as
treasury shares), at the price of up to but not exceeding the Maximum Price (as defined in the Company’s
Addendum to Shareholders dated 13 April 2017 (being an addendum to the Annual Report of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016) (the “Addendum”)), in accordance with the “Guidelines on Share
Purchases” set out in the Appendix on pages 19 to 22 of the Addendum, and this mandate shall commence
from the date of passing of this Resolution and expire at the earliest of (a) the date on which the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company is or is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier; (b) the date on
which the purchases or acquisitions of shares pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate are carried out to
the full extent authorised under the Share Purchase Mandate; or (c) the effective date on which the authority
conferred in the Share Purchase Mandate is varied (as to the duration of the Share Purchase Mandate) or
revoked by the Shareholders in general meeting.”
(Resolution 9)

(d)

“That
(i)

approval be and is hereby given for the Company and its subsidiaries or any of them to enter into
any of the transactions falling within the categories of interested person transactions described in
the Addendum with any party who is of the class or classes of interested persons described in the
Addendum, provided that such transactions are made on normal commercial terms in accordance with
the guidelines and procedures for review and administration of the interested person transactions as
described in the Addendum (the “IPT Mandate”);

(ii)

the IPT Mandate shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, continue to be in
force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

(iii)

the Audit Committee of the Company be and is hereby authorised to take such action as it deems
proper in respect of procedures and/or to modify or implement such procedures as may be necessary to
take into consideration any amendment to Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual which may be prescribed by
the SGX-ST from time to time; and
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(iv)

8.

authority be and is hereby given to the directors of the Company to complete and do all such acts and
things (including executing all such documents as may be required) as they may consider expedient,
necessary or in the interests of the Company to give effect to the IPT Mandate and/or this Resolution.”
(Resolution 10)

Any other ordinary business, which may be transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Adrian Chan Pengee
Company Secretary
13 April 2017
NOTES:
1.

(a)

A member of the Company who is not a relevant intermediary entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting may appoint
not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote in his stead. Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, he shall specify the
proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

(b)

A member of the Company who is a relevant intermediary is entitled to appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote
at the above Meeting, but each proxy must be appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different Share or Shares held
by such member (which number and class of Shares shall be specified). In such an event, such member shall submit a list of
its proxies together with the information required in this proxy form to the Company.

“Relevant Intermediary” means:
(I)

a banking corporation licensed under the Banking Act of Singapore (Cap. 19) or a wholly-owned subsidiary of such a banking
corporation, whose business includes the provision of nominee services and who holds shares in that capacity;

(II)

a person holding a capital markets services license to provide custodial services for securities under the Securities and
Futures Act of Singapore (Cap. 289), and who holds shares in that capacity; or

(III)

the Central Provident Fund Board established by the Central Provident Fund Act of Singapore (Cap. 36), in respect of
shares purchased under the subsidiary legislation made under that Act providing for the making of investments from the
contributions and interest standing to the credit of members of the Central Provident Fund, if the Board holds those shares in
the capacity of an intermediary pursuant to or in accordance with that subsidiary legislation.

2.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight (48) hours
before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

4.

If the member is a corporation, the instrument appointing the proxy must be under seal or the hand of an officer or attorney duly
authorised.

5.

The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed, illegible
or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified on this instrument
appointing a proxy or proxies. In addition, in the case of members whose shares are deposited with The Central Depository (Pte)
Limited (“CDP”), the Company may reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if such members are not shown to
have shares entered against their names in the Depository Register seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for holding the
meeting as certified by CDP to the Company.

EXPLANATORY NOTES:
Resolution 3
Resolution 3 above is to seek approval for the payment of S$258,000 as Directors’ Fees to the Independent Directors as well as the other
Directors on the board for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The Directors’ Fees for the financial year ended 31 December 2015
was S$258,000 for the Independent Directors as well as the other Directors on the board.
Resolution 4
Mr. Tay Teng Hock, if re-elected, will remain a Non-Executive Director of the Company. Please refer to page 10 of the Company’s Annual
Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 for more information.
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Resolution 5
Mr. Ng Teck Sim Colin, Non-Executive Director and Independent Director, if re-elected, will also remain as Chairman of the Nominating
Committee and member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Please refer to page 11 of the Company’s Annual Report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 for more information.
Resolution 7
Resolution 7 above, if passed, empowers the Directors, from the date of the above Meeting until the next Annual General Meeting, to allot
and issue shares and convertible securities of the Company, without seeking any further approval from Shareholders in general meeting but
within the limitation imposed by the Resolution.
The authority for the Enhanced Rights Issue Limit is proposed pursuant to Practice Note 8.3 of the Listing Manual. In accordance with
Rule 107 of the Listing Manual, the SGX-ST has modified the requirement under Rule 806(2) of the Listing Manual to provisionally raise the
renounceable rights issue limit from 50% to 100% subject to the conditions set out in paragraph 3 of Practice Note 8.3 of the Listing Manual.
The Enhanced Rights Issue Limit will take effect from 13 March 2017 until 31 December 2018 by which date the shares issued pursuant to
the Enhanced Rights Issue Limit must be listed.
The adoption of the Enhanced Rights Issue Limit, if approved, will allow the Company to take advantage of the Enhanced Rights Issue Limit.
The Board of Directors is of the view that the Enhanced Rights Issue Limit is in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as the
adoption of the Enhanced Rights Issue Limit would provide the Company with the flexibility to utilise this limit in the event that the Company
wishes to undertake a rights issue.
Resolution 8
Resolution 8 above, if passed, empowers the Directors to offer and grant options and to issue shares in connection with the Option Scheme.
This authority will, unless previously revoked or varied at a general meeting, expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company or the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier.
This authority is in addition to the general authority to issue shares sought under Resolution 7.
Resolution 9
Resolution 9 above, if passed, empowers the Directors of the Company to make purchases (whether by way of market purchases or offmarket purchases on an equal access scheme) from time to time of up to ten per cent. (10%) of the total number of issued ordinary shares
in the capital of the Company (excluding any ordinary shares held as treasury shares) as at the date of the last annual general meeting or the
date of the Resolution, whichever is the higher, unless the Company has effected a reduction of the share capital of the Company in which
event the issued ordinary shares of the Company shall be taken to be the number of the issued ordinary shares of the Company as altered
(excluding any ordinary shares held as treasury shares), at a price up to but not exceeding the Maximum Price (as defined in the Addendum)
(the “Share Purchase Mandate”).
Please refer to the Addendum for the rationale for the Share Purchase Mandate, the source of funds to be used for the Share Purchase
Mandate (including the amount of financing), the impact of the Share Purchase Mandate on the Company’s financial position, the implications
arising as a result of the Share Purchase Mandate under the Singapore Code on Take-overs and Mergers and on the listing of the Company’s
Shares on the SGX-ST, the number of Shares purchased by the Company in the previous twelve (12) months, as well as whether the Shares
purchased by the Company will be cancelled or kept as treasury shares.
Resolution 10
Resolution 10, if passed, will renew the IPT Mandate first given by the Shareholders at the Company’s Extraordinary General Meeting held
on 29 April 2011 to allow the Company, and its subsidiaries and associated companies or any of them to enter into Interested Person
Transactions (details of which are set out in the Addendum).
The Company’s Audit Committee has confirmed (pursuant to Rule 920(1) of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST) that the methods or review
procedures set out in the Addendum for determining the transaction prices in respect of the interested person transactions have not changed
since the Shareholders’ approval at the previous Annual General Meeting held on 28 April 2016.
Personal data privacy:
By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting and/
or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s personal data
by the Company (or its agents or service providers) for the purpose of the processing, administration and analysis by the Company (or its
agents or service providers) of proxies and representatives appointed for the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof)
and the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the Annual General Meeting (including
any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its agents or service providers) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules,
regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) warrants that where the member discloses the personal data of the member’s
proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its agents or service providers), the member has obtained the prior consent of such
proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents or service providers) of the personal
data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of
any penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result of the member’s breach of warranty.
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PROXY FORM

IMPORTANT
1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy SUTL
Enterprise Limited shares, this Annual Report is sent to
them at the request of their CPF Approved Nominees. FOR
INFORMATION ONLY.
2.

Annual General Meeting

This proxy form is not valid for use by CPF investors and shall
be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported
to be used by them.

I/We

(Name)

of

(Address)

being a *Member / Members of SUTL Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) hereby appoint:Name

Address

NRIC/Passport
Number

Proportion of
Shareholding
(if more than one (1)
proxy is appointed)
No. of Shares

%

and/or (delete as appropriate)
Name

Address

NRIC/Passport
Number

Proportion of
Shareholding
(if more than one (1)
proxy is appointed)
No. of Shares

%

or failing *him/them the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting as *my/our proxy/proxies to attend and vote for *me/us on
*my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll at the Twenty-Third Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at
Constellation 1, ONE°15 Marina Club, #01-01, 11 Cove Drive, Sentosa Cove, Singapore 098497, on 28 April 2017 at 2:30 p.m.
and at any adjournment thereof.
(Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided whether you wish your vote(s) to be cast for or against the Resolutions as set
out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. In the absence of specific directions, the *proxy/proxies may vote or abstain as *he/
they may think fit on any matter arising at the Annual General Meeting.)
No.
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Resolution
Adoption of Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts
To declare a final dividend at 2 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2016
Approval of Directors’ fees
Re-election of Director – Mr. Tay Teng Hock
Re-election of Director – Mr. Ng Teck Sim Colin
Re-appointment of auditors
Authority to issue and allot shares pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap.
50
Authority to offer and grant options in accordance with the Share Option Scheme
2011
Authority to purchase shares pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate
Authority to enter into interested person transactions pursuant to the Interested Person
Transactions Mandate

Dated this

day of

For*

2017.
Total number of Shares in:
(a) CDP Register
(b) Register of Members

&

Signature(s) of member(s)/Common Seal
IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF BEFORE COMPLETING THIS PROXY FORM
* delete as appropriate.

Against*

No. of Shares

Notes :1.

(a) 	A member of the Company who is not a relevant intermediary entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting may appoint
not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote in his stead. Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, he shall specify the
proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.
(b)	A member of the Company who is a relevant intermediary is entitled to appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at
the above Meeting, but each proxy must be appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different Share or Shares held by such
member (which number and class of Shares shall be specified). In such an event, such member shall submit a list of its proxies
together with the information required in this proxy form to the Company.
“Relevant Intermediary” means:
(I)

a banking corporation licensed under the Banking Act of Singapore (Cap. 19) or a wholly-owned subsidiary of such a banking
corporation, whose business includes the provision of nominee services and who holds shares in that capacity;

(II)

a person holding a capital markets services license to provide custodial services for securities under the Securities and Futures
Act of Singapore (Cap. 289), and who holds shares in that capacity; or

(III)

the Central Provident Fund Board established by the Central Provident Fund Act of Singapore (Cap. 36), in respect of shares
purchased under the subsidiary legislation made under that Act providing for the making of investments from the contributions
and interest standing to the credit of members of the Central Provident Fund, if the Board holds those shares in the capacity of
an intermediary pursuant to or in accordance with that subsidiary legislation.

2.

This instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be signed by the appointor or his/her duly authorised attorney. Where this instrument
appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under its common seal or under the hand of its
attorney or a duly authorised officer.

3.

A Member which is a body corporate may also appoint an authorised representative or representatives in accordance with Section 179
of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, to attend and vote for and on behalf of such body corporate.

4.

Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register (as defined
in Section 81SF of the Securities and Futures Act, Cap. 289), you should insert that number of shares. If you have shares registered in
your name in the Register of Members of the Company, you should insert that number of shares. If you have shares entered against your
name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number of
shares. If no number is inserted, this instrument appointing a proxy or proxies will be deemed to relate to all the shares held by you.

5.

This instrument appointing a proxy or proxies, duly executed, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at #05-00,
100J Pasir Panjang Road, SUTL House, Singapore 118525 at least forty-eight (48) hours before the time fixed for holding the meeting.

6.

Where an instrument appointing a proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the letter or power of attorney or a duly
certified copy thereof must (failing previous registration with the Company) be lodged with the instrument of proxy, failing which the
instrument may be treated as invalid.

General
The Company shall be entitled to reject this instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed, illegible or where
the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified on this instrument appointing a proxy or
proxies. In addition, in the case of Members whose shares are deposited with The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”), the Company may
reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if such Members are not shown to have shares entered against their names in the
Depository Register forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting as certified by CDP to the Company.

Personal data privacy
By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting and/or any
adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company
(or its agents or service providers) for the purpose of the processing, administration and analysis by the Company (or its agents or service
providers) of proxies and representatives appointed for the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and
compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof),
and in order for the Company (or its agents or service providers) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines
(collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) warrants that where the member discloses the personal data of the member’s proxy(ies) and/or representative(s)
to the Company (or its agents or service providers), the member has obtained the prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the
collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents or service providers) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s)
for the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and
damages as a result of the member’s breach of warranty.

Marina in Zhuhai,
China

ONE°15 Puteri Harbour
Club Rendering

Marina in Jakarta,
Indonesia

ONE°15 Brooklyn Marina in
New York, USA

SUTL Enterprise Limited
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#05-00 SUTL House, Singapore 118525
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